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Our
Vision
M E =

global company that consistently
es product innovation and creates values
that enhance people’s quality of life.

Ourss
MISsSion
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global presence through L 2
ing distribution network and
leveraging international partnership.

& creating innovative products and services by ¢
application of new technology and unique

design with high quality, user-friendliness and
cost-effectiveness.

highest value to exceed the expectations
of our customers, partners, employees and
shareholders.
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IDT, established in 1977, is a leader in the design,
development, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of lifestyle products through the
application of innovative LCD, microprocessor and
sensor applications with wireless technologies.

In the past 36 years, IDT’s reputation and corporate
image have grown in international markets. IDT's
own brand “Oregon Scientific” has become widely
recognised around the world. Its innovative products
have gained a high degree of recognition and
consumer confidence for enhancing their quality of
living.

IDT International Limited was listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1988 (Stock Code:
167).

IDT operates its wholly owned marketing and
distribution subsidiaries in 10 countries around the
world. Our business presence has been established in
over 35 countries through distributors.
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Group Financial Summary

SENBEE

RESULTS E 3

Year ended March 31,
BE=A=1t-HLEFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Lt BREET AREER BMEERT  AREER

Turnover HEE 1,578.2 1,597.1 1,623.6 1,394.9 1,720.7
(Loss) profit before taxation BRitAT (B8 ) 27l (15.8) (25.3) (45.6) 91.7) 385
Taxation IR (13.1) (5.1) (1.6) (63.3) (7.2)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (1) AT (28.9) (30.4) 472 (155.0) 313
Attributable to: EEHN:
Owners of the Company ANEEEA (30.4) (49.6) (138.2) 246
Non-controlling interests FEBRER - 24 (16.8) 6.7
(30.4) (47.2) (155.0) 313
(Loss) earnings per share i (B1B)BF
- Basic and diluted -EAREE CLal s (1.22) HK cents (1.98) HK cents  (5.53) HK cents 0.98 HK cents
B AL AL AL AL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
As at March 31,
R=ZA=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER AEEET ABERET BERET BEEET
Total assets BEE 1,057.9 1,017.6 1,2346 1,478.7 1,610.0
Total liabilities GafRE (514.7) (440.4) (613.0) (666.2) (611.7)
543.2 577.2 621.6 8125 998.3
Equity attributable to /NI Z=DN
owners of the Company JE{E s 577.1 621.5 6255 7473
Non-controlling interests FERER 0.1 0.1 187.0 251.0
577.2 621.6 8125 998.3
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Corporate Information
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Bermuda:
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Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
167
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Group's
annual result for the year ended March 31, 2013.

RESULTS

Because of the slow recovery of the global economy and persistent weak
consumer sentiment, the Group’s total revenue mildly decreased by 1.2%
to HK$1,578.2 million. Gross profit was HK$441.8 million, a 8.8% decrease
compared to HK$484.5 million in the previous year, because of the changes
in the product and channel mix and rising raw materials and manufacturing
costs as well as clearance sales of some slow-moving inventories. Gross profit
margin dropped by 2.3 percentage points to 28.0%.

The Group continued to implement a series of cost control measures which
proved effective, including operational restructuring, business streamlining
and stringent cost controls. However, due to the initial expenditure related to
the introduction of MEEP!, marking a new strategic direction, our operating
expense decreased by 1.6% to HK$510.2 million as a result.

During the year, we launched our first kid's tablet, MEEP!, along with
accessories, associated games and apps. Investment in advertising and
promotion activities for MEEP! was necessary in entering the previously
untapped tablet market. We have actively promoted MEEP! in key markets
through integrated marketing campaign.

The net loss attributable to owners of the company was reduced by 4.9% to
HK$28.9 million compared to the net loss of HK$30.4 million in the previous
year.

8 IDT International Limited & BIFRB R R E]
Annual Report ()13 &

Chairman’s

Statement
FEHRESE

AANERREZEREAEEBE_T—=F=A
=t-RLEFEZEFEEE-

s/ﬁi

8
AR ENEENBIBERIEEENBERS A%
BB e EANBEZNBE1,578288 T2 KF
BEAFEYMTEI2% - EF AEEI48EE T A
L EF B4 SEETL TH88% ERNEmMIHE
REBAAEE EMBREERAE LA UREHES
DEHETE - EFETE23IEEHBE28.0% °

AEEBEERSEBROKAZSIER 2IE%E
HEME EBEHMBRARIEEIEERA R AR
AP AZ 5 T RO BLRE 5 (A Y EE SRMEEP | 2 #1HR
AY KEBEARKEBARDI6%EEE51028E8
ST e

BPRAFEHRHLEEAZEEE FIRENMEEP | -
SR EERMS - HENEEFERAERN - HREA M
REEMHFIRER TS 1% &7 E S M EMEEP |
MY RMEN - RMABEBTREHEEHDEETEMS
TEAT HE FEMEEP | o

RAREA AR FEAEFNAE30488 T
TIRA9% EHEEE289B B T °



OUTLOOK

While the economic recovery in the US is proceeding, growth in the European
countries is lagging behind. At the same time, the rising costs of both labour
and materials continue to place pressure on the costs of goods as well as
profit margins. The Group is continuing its proactive measures aimed at
improving its business. Key initiatives in this direction include:

o Further enhanced centralisation of the product development,
engineering, and sourcing operations in the Manufacturing Division
by leveraging its resources in order to improve efficiency and cost
effectiveness;

o Introduction and investment in new innovative products and expansion
to new markets to secure new sources of revenue;

o Focusing on investment in and developing China and other emerging
markets to capture new business opportunities and extend our reach;

o Streamlining our internal operations and overseas organisational
structure and implementing new business models to reduce operating
costs and expenses.

OS is developing new innovations for the coming year leveraging wireless
connectivity and software application technologies. Advancing forward from
the first generation of MEEP!, OS is scheduled to launch MEEP!X2 in time
for Christmas, 2013. As an expert in small weather monitoring stations, we
continue to enable easy access of weather data anywhere users may go.
For the category of Sports, Fitness and Health, we are expanding our action
camera range to enter new market segments. Devices will also be introduced
to monitor, share and store fitness activities and sports performance data.
Wellness and Beauty products still remain as our principal focus for the Asia
market.

Guiding OS" marketing strategy is the promotion of the “Smart Living”
concept and key products, both online and offline. To effectively address the
growing importance of e-commerce and increase sales, OS has continued
to invest in our e-commerce engines as well as engagement of consumers
through social networking activities.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

OS will continue to develop new sales channels and further expand into new
markets through recruiting qualified distributors, sales agents and partnering
with other well-known brands on co-branding projects. For example, we
successfully entered markets in Russia and Japan during the past year.

Through the continued streamlining of our business, on-going right sizing
exercises in OS overseas subsidiaries, and by leveraging the resources of
our Manufacturing Division, our Group expects to lower the fixed costs and
thereby become more competitive. In the coming year, we face challenges
in improving our profit margin as well as continuous reduction in operating
expenses. We will continue to search for distributors of our products in order
to reduce the cost as well as risks to our Group and boost our competitive
edge.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to our
shareholders and business associates for the continued support. | also want
extend our deep appreciation to our management team and staff members
for their hard work and dedication during the past financial year.

Raymond Chan, Jp
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

June 26, 2013
Hong Kong

1 0 IDT International Limited & &k BIBE G R A 7]
Annual Report ()13 &

OSH BB MIHERE  WHEBHRE AR H
B HERIE - U RBINEMAN S MR FmIE S 1R
B E—FRERAMG - HIERE—F  OST K]
ITEBBEIMA AT -

BBFENRBEER HEROSEINIB A RIER
BENERIE URERMERMANER A5E
B R AR EEERA RSB T - RN —F
& RS EEERSNERALBEREELER
EVPRBL - FL AP E S IREMA D 1A - R E
AEBRATER LIRS HFMNZHEE T -

&)
AABRREFGRMBUMREREREH —EY
AEBZXR TRHGEEEGL2EETNBER
HFERSE N TERF RS -

BRIZBS AP#£
FTIEREE TR

TE-=FRA-+RA
B



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Due to the continued slow recovery of the global economy, the Group
recorded a mild decrease of turnover and gross profit for the year ended
March 31, 2013 (the “year under review"). The loss for the year under review
was reduced by 4.9% to HK$28.9 million, compared to the loss of HK$30.4
million for the year ended March 31, 2012.

The Group's total turnover was HK$1,578.2 million, a slight decrease of
1.2% when compared to HK$1,597.1 million recorded last year in view of the
difficult operating conditions in the retail market, particularly in Europe. The
revenue of Oregon Scientific (“OS”) branded products increased by 7.0% to
HK$797.9 million from HK$745.7 million last year, while the revenue of ODM/
OEM products decreased by 8.4% to HK$780.3 million from HK$851.4 million
last year.

Gross profit was HK$441.8 million, a drop of 8.8% as compared to HK$484.5
million last year. Gross margin was 28.0%, a decline of 2.3 percentage points
as a result of changes in product and channel mix, increases in material costs,
and clearance sales of slow-moving inventory with lower margins.
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Operations Review
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The Group continued to exercise stringent cost controls while implementing
streamlining measures. However, due to the advertising and promotion
expenses for its first kids' tablet, MEEP!, total operating expenses actually only
recorded a slight decrease. Total operating expenses of the Group, including
research and development costs, distribution and selling expenses, and
general administrative expenses, amounted to HK$510.2 million, a reduction
of 1.6% against HK$518.5 million recorded last year.

Other gains and losses during the year under review were recorded at gains
of HK$42.1 million, while losses of HK$6.4 million were recorded last year.
Other gains this year comprised mainly the gains on disposal of properties
amounting to HK$47.4 million.

Interest expenses for banks and other borrowings amounted to HK$6.8
million, an increase 6.3% as compared to HK$6.4 million last year.

Taxation amounted to HK$13.1 million, while it was HK$5.1 million last year.
The tax for the year under review was mainly under provision of overseas tax
amounting to HK$7.9 million, which is a one-off payment in nature, as well as
deferred tax charges amounting to HK$6.4 million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oregon Scientific

For the year under review, sales revenues from OS climbed by 7.0% to
HK$797.9 million, compared with HK$745.7 million for last year. The amount
represented 50.6% of the Group's total sales revenues. The increase was
mainly due to the launch of MEEP! in the American and European markets.

Electronic Learning Products (“ELP") accounted for 51.9% of total OS sales;
Time and Weather (“T&W") accounted for 30.0%; other product categories
covered the remaining balance of 18.1% including Wellness and Beauty,
Sports, Fitness and Healthcare (“SFH"), Telecommunication (“TEL") and
others.

1 2 IDT International Limited & /& BIFRE R A A
Annual Report ()13 4

REBERFBEERBREORAZESFBERERE AT &
REEEREZE FIREMMEEP | HESREEHNH
X SRR IR R RS @«ﬁﬁleW RNEBRHRLEE
AX BIEMRIRAEER DHEMEERAIE—KTT
B R B ES10288 T REFREHENES18.5
BET BD1.6% -

BEFEANEBRE MEBRSSEE2 1 BETHOR
@ MEFRBASRGEEEcAaBTHEE - AFEH
HRaET2REHEME 2 WEBE4748ET-

RITEERHMEENTERM X REKCSAEL &
EFEBKCATBTTIENE3% °

MIEERAEB I3 IBET MEFRMAUREES
BEL-DEFENNE T22 Eif%?l\%ﬁlﬁﬁéﬁ
TR -SEA/ABKTIAET JH—RMERB U REE
Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi@%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%.4§%ﬁ°

E L AE)

Oregon Scientific

EREEFER OSHEIRA BEK797.98 81 AL X
EBEIASTEET ERTT7.0% - 2 HEAEENE
PHEWRAS0.6%  HIEINE ERBNEEEMBMNDS
HEHIMEEP | -

EFHEER ([EFHEER])HOSHEBERN
51.9% KHEERAR ([HFHEEXR])1530.0%  HitE
miap RERELER B8 REMEREER ([E
M) REAMAEHT

FoEEMEREMR])MEM(E
718.1% °




Noteworthy in the ELP category, was the launch of its first tablet for
kids, MEEP!. It runs the Android operating system, offers games, music,
movies, e-books, communicator, web browsing and various educational
and infotainment applications for children, and features a parental control
function. The tablet is also linked to a portal, MEEP! Store, for convenient
purchase of different apps and games, creating a supplementary income
stream for OS. Although we had experienced some technical issues during
the initial launch of MEEP!, in particular the American market, we managed
to rectify the problems, and kept on selling MEEP! into our targeted new
markets, such as Japan, Korea, and Middle East.

In the T&W category, OS has developed the Anywhere Weather Station which
enables weather data detected by the sensors to be stored in cloud servers
and wirelessly accessed anywhere through the internet. An online weather
community has also been established to share weather information through
OS’ own weather portal.

SFH products continue to be one of the key product categories for OS.
Perhaps the most significant indication of its importance is the launch of the
Ssmart Watch series during the year. This innovative watch offers smartwatch
functions with additional sports applications designed for those who want to
monitor and share their sporting performances via smartphones. The Ssmart
Watch RA900 was awarded the Red Dot Design Award 2012.

Also awarded the Red Dot Design Award 2012 was the ATC Chameleon, the
world's first dual-lens action video camera which can capture both the motion
and emotion of the users. OS promoted the ATC Chameleon worldwide
through team sponsorship at the Macau Grand Prix 2012 and the US Super
Boat World Championships 2012.

In the Wellness & Beauty product category, OS launched the illumi Ambient
Wakeup Light = WL201. By connecting it to a smartphone with a downloaded
illumi sleep app, it monitors the sleep cycle and wakes you up most naturally
at the ideal time. Besides wakeup lights, aroma diffusers and beauty items
continue as OS' strategic product ranges with new models introduced during
the year under review.

Operations Review
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Operations Review
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During the year, OS garnered several international awards for design and
innovation. Apart from the prizes for the Ssmart Watch and the ATC Chameleon
action video camera mentioned above, OS was also honoured with the Red
Dot Design Award 2012 for the Time & Wireless Charging Station, the iF
Product Award 2012 for the illumi Ambient Wakeup Light and the NanoActiv
Skin Restoring System, and the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
("HKEIA") Bronze Award for Innovation and Technology for the MEEP! tablet.

Value Manufacturing Services

Revenue from the Value Manufacturing Services Division (“VMS") declined
by 8.4% to HK$780.3 million. The decrease was mainly due to the decline in
sales from some of its key customers in Europe and the continued challenging
economic environment.

By analyzing the total VMS turnover according to product categories, SFH
accounted for 60.1%; TEL and T&W products accounted for 23.0%; with the
balance of 16.9% in ELP and other product categories. SFH remains as the
largest product category. With the Group's strong technical competence and
outstanding engineering support in new product development, the sales from
the SFH product category increased by 32.6% during the year under review as
compared with the last financial year. However, sales revenue of TEL products
declined by 32.4% due to the phasing out of this product category.

The VMS Division will focus on development and sales of core products that
contribute better margins, as well as source for more new customers. VMS
will continue to invest in developing the technology platforms for healthcare,
energy monitoring and management products. Because of the strong technical
competency, VMS is able to partner with some of the leading global brands to
develop and manufacture their products. To counter anticipated higher labour
costs and manufacturing overhead arising from the increase in wages in China
during the year ahead and the pressure on gross margins from customers, VMS
will continue to exercise stringent control over operating costs.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at March 31, 2013 was HK$277.9 million, increased by
9.6% compared to the HK$253.5 million at March 31, 2012. The increase is
mainly due to introduction of new product during the year under review. The
inventory turnover increased from 83 days recorded last year, to 89 days this year.

Trade debtor balances at March 31, 2013 was HK$224.1 million, up by
40.9% compared to the HK$159.1 million shown at March 31, 2012 and it
is attributable to increase in sales in March 2013 compared with March 2012.
Trade debtor’s turnover increased to 52 days compared to that of last year of
36 days.
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LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

At March 31, 2013, the bank balances and cash of the Group, including the
short term bank deposits, were HK$317.0 million (March 31, 2012: HK$337.5
million).

During the year under review, the Group generated its funds mainly
from operating activities, bank borrowings and proceeds from disposal of
properties. The net cash position (bank balances and cash less total bank
borrowings) at March 31, 2013 amounted to HK$55.1 million (March 31,
2012: HK$145.5 million). The Group maintained sufficient financial resources
to meet all working capital requirements and finances of its commitments and
still has a surplus of net cash over all bank borrowings.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency stems mainly from the net cash
flow and net working capital translation achieved in its overseas subsidiaries.
Hedging of foreign currency exposures is arranged through a combination of
natural hedges and forward forex contracts. At March 31, 2013, there were
forward contracts in place to hedge against possible exchange movements of
future net cash flows. Speculative currency transactions are strictly prohibited.
Management of currency risk is the responsibility of the Group’s headquarters
in Hong Kong.

DEBTS AND GEARING RATIO

The total bank borrowings of the Group at March 31, 2013 increased to
HK$261.9 million (March 31, 2012: HK$192.0 million) which consisted of the
short term bank loans of HK$261.3 million and bank overdrafts of HK$0.6
million. The borrowings are mainly denominated in HK dollars and on floating
rates bases.

The debts incurred by the Group are mainly used for general corporate
purposes, including capital or long term expenditures and working capital
requirements.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total equity) at March 31, 2013 and
March 31, 2012 were approximately 48.2% and 33.3% respectively.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At March 31, 2013, there were no finance charges on the Group's assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the year ended
March 31, 2013 amounted to HK$19.4 million (2012: HK$16.6 million) which
was all used for business operations and product development. Source of
funds were financed by internal resources and borrowings.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies in the course of the year ended March 31, 2013.

Operations Review
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Operations Review
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended March 31, 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2013, the Group had no contingent liabilities (2012: nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at March 31, 2013, the Group had 3,023 employees. The Group fully
recognizes the importance of its employees who contribute significantly to
its success and continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its
workforce by providing them with adequate and regular training.

The Group's remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at
market rates which reward individual's performance and attract, retain
and motivate high quality employees. The compensation packages offered
by the Group are comparable with other organizations of similar size and
business nature and are reviewed annually. The components of employee's
remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay, fringe benefits
including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as
incentives like discretionary cash bonus and the opportunities to participate in
the Group's share option schemes.

Details of the schemes and the number of options granted to the Group's
employees are set out in note 26 to the financial statements from page 106
to page 114. Details of pension schemes operated by the Group are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements on page 125. In Xixiang, Shenzhen,
China where the Xixiang facilities are located, staff welfare rates are set with
reference to the prevailing labour laws in China. Accommodation and leisure
facilities are also provided to local staff at Xixiang facilities.

The Group’s remuneration philosophy for executive directors and senior
executives is based upon creating a strong link between performance and
reward in accordance with the following principles:

1. Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against
comparator groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size
and business nature and benchmarked with the prevailing market
conditions; and
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2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined
performance targets including financial targets, performance index and
pre-agreed management objectives.

The emolument of the directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee with reference to companies of comparable business type or scale,
and the nature and quantity of work at both Board and Board Committee
levels (including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order
to compensate directors reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The
directors’ emolument is approved by the Board pursuant to the mandate
granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings. It comprises of five
components, namely base salary, benefits, annual performance-related bonus,
share options and pension scheme. In addition, each director is paid a basic
director’s fee for his/her service as director of the Company. Additional fees
are paid to a director for appointment as a member of a particular committee.
Non-executive directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension
except director’s fee and reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection
with their directorship of the Company. No individual director is allowed to
participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual remuneration
package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid to the directors
in the year ended March 31, 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements from page 87 to page 88. All directors are entitled to participate
in the share option schemes of the Company. Details of the schemes and the
number of options granted to directors of the Company are set out in note 26
to the financial statements from page 106 to page 114.

Raymond Chan, Jp
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

June 26, 2013
Hong Kong
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Employee Development and Corporate Social Responsibilities

ETHRETFHEER

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

Given the economic volatility, competition and complexity of the business
environment we are experiencing inevitable change in our operations. Rather
than cutting training budgets, the Corporate T&D Dept has sought to achieve
employee development with a greater impact more closely aligned to our
corporate objectives and new business model, aiming at driving the business
and engaging the workforce, building talents and leaders for TODAY and
TOMORROW, and developing a high performance learning culture that
advances business results.

LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

We focus on equipping leaders of all levels to enhance team effectiveness
and staff engagement. The Top and Senior Management are frequently
invited to share their experience and business insights at our quarterly CEO
Forum as well as at various workshops. Management tools such as a balanced
scorecard and 360 degree feedback survey are used to drive performance
and leadership excellence. Adapted from Gallup Consulting, the workplace
survey is also conducted for all staff every six months to measure the level of
staff engagement. Follow-up workshops to share best practices and various
leadership programs on organizational effectiveness through team dynamics
and performance management, while coaching and mentoring are provided
to ensure continuous improvement.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS & ENGAGEMENT

To improve employees’

overall physical and mental

health and well being, we

have tailor-made a series of

employee wellness programs

promoting intelligent-

living, organic diet and a

healthy lifestyle. Experts of

various disciplines are invited

to deliver Lunch & Learn

sessions in various areas of interest, such as homemade kimchi, DIY fruit
jam, aromatherapy, flower arrangement and dancing class. We have actively
organized and participated in basketball and ping-pong tournaments, the
LiNing 10K Road Race in Shenzhen and the 50km Walkathon in Dongguan.
Social and recreational activities such as the New Hire Lunch Gathering,
Annual Outing, Christmas Party, Annual Dinner and Charity Lunch Party are
held every year to enhance internal communication and reinforce a sense of
belonging.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group has been actively promoting awareness of our social responsibilities
to our employees. The CSR volunteer team has reached 243 active members
with a total of 4,560 hours served. Since 2005, the Group has been bestowed
the award of the “Caring Company Logo” for the eighth consecutive year
by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our care for the
community.
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Employee Development and Corporate Social Responsibilities

In addition to the external CSR activities, we have developed the “Caring
Ambassador Program” this year with the aim to improve staff engagement
and provide an atmosphere of “home"” and positive caring culture through
internal volunteering activities such as the monthly welcome dinner for newly
joined workers, and counseling service to staff about mental stress. More than
100 caring ambassadors have been recruited in the first year and they have
completed professional training on counseling techniques.

CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

As Hong Kong's population is rapidly aging, there has been tremendous
demand for service to the elderly. Partnering with Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui,
we pay regular home visits, and organize birthday parties and outings for elderly
in Wong Tai Sin who live alone and suffer from chronic disease or physical
handicaps. This program which aims to maintain resilience and self-confidence
in the elderly through showing them care and concern has been conducted
consecutively for more than four years. In addition to the monthly program,
this year we have committed to the “life stories writing program” for the
16 elderly. From training, interviewing, story-writing, editing to typesetting
and graphic design, our selected CSR volunteers have been working very
hard for this special project. The stories are full of wisdom and have perfectly
demonstrated how these unsung heroes have struggled successfully against all
odds. The DIY copy turned out to be very beautiful and unique in design.

Disabled or retarded children are another target group we serve. This is
the second year that we have participated in the “firefly life education
program,” co-organized by Caritas Lokkan School. We visit their Tin Shui Wai
campus every month to serve the severely mentally handicapped children who
stay at the dormitory without any chance of interacting with outsiders.
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Employee Development and Corporate Social Responsibilities

ETHRETFHEER

POVERTY ALLEVIATED IN GUIZHOU

As one of the China’s poorest provinces, Guizhou experiences persistent
drought as well as disadvantages caused by remoteness and an undeveloped
education system. We have been sponsoring more than 40 students of Pei
Hui primary school for three years. Despite the uncontrollable factors such as
weather, road blockages and unsanitary toilet facilities in the area, our annual
school visit has been offering unique and exceptional experiences to our CSR
volunteers. Besides continuing to sponsor two eggs weekly to 420 students as
a nutrition supplement, we have donated four sets of solar water heaters so
that the 200 full-time students have a chance to take a shower at least once a
week at school. We have also distributed towels, plastic cups and toothbrush
sets to all students to promote personal hygiene.

Education is a foundation stone for the prosperity and future of a community.
With our sincere hearts, we will hopefully improve the educational
environment and facilities of this poor minority region and distressed area. We
will continuously support this school and expand our scope of assistance to
include more services and more people in need.

EDUCATION SPONSORSHIP

Oregon Scientific is well-known as an innovative as well as a caring company. To
promote the awareness of design value and to enhance the expertise of the design
professionals and business students, we also offer sponsorships to student projects,
contests, and leadership programs. The “PolyU Innovation & Entrepreneurship
Global Student Challenge” and “Hong Kong 200 Leadership Project” organized
by the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups are the two of the key annual
sponsorship programs in which we participate. These programs aim at encouraging
the youth to contribute their skills to the society and equipping them with the right
attitude, knowledge and leadership skills to cope with the real business world.

This year we have sponsored 60 product design students at the Hong Kong
Design Institute for their second year projects. Based on the existing OS
product categories, each student is to design a new product within three
months time after their site visit to our Xixian Office in Shenzhen. During the
half-day visit, the students gained greater knowledge of our products and
insights into the workflow from idea generation to the final products delivered
to the end user. We highlighted the fact that design for manufacturing,
quality and marketability is essential. The Oregon Scientific Product Innovation
Competition Final was hosted in May and our product designers have given
each candidate professional comments and suggestions for improvement
along with sponsoring a cash prize to the top 5 submissions.

The Group has also donated products and cash to organizations such as Youth
Outreach, the Society for the Welfare of the Autistic Persons, and St James
Settlement to support their charitable programs. We have also supported a
wide range of fund-raising programs such as the Sowers Action Challenging
and the Heifer Race to Feed.

Our impact on the lives of others can be much bigger than we think! We wish to
express our great appreciation to our management and staff for their dedication,
time and money they have provided to all of these charity events and projects.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer, a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group, aged 64. Dr. Chan founded the IDT business in 1977. He leads the
management in setting the Group’s mission and objectives, develops and
formulates business strategies and execution of business activities. Dr. Chan
started out as an electronic engineer and has over 43 years' experience in the
consumer electronics industry. Before establishing the IDT business, he worked
for multinational semi-conductor companies in the US and Hong Kong. Dr.
Chan has been conferred for a degree of Doctor in Business Administration,
honoris causa by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003.
Dr. Chan is a Court Member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a
member of the Board of Governors of Canadian International School of Hong
Kong, a Council Member of Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the Honorary
Advisor of HKICC Lee Shau Kee School of Creativity, the Honorary President
of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and Life Patron of
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Dr. Chan is the
husband of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

Executive Director, a member of the Executive Committee, Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee and Remuneration Committee and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group, aged 64. Mrs. Chan is the wife of
Dr. Raymond Chan and as a co-founder of the Group, she has been involved
in developing the IDT business since 1977. Mrs. Chan’s main responsibilities
are to advise on marketing activities, legal affairs and administrative functions
of the Group. Mrs. Chan holds a MBA degree from the University of Hull, UK,
a Master of Arts degree in Communication Management from the University
of South Australia, and a Master of Arts degree in English for Professional
Purposes from the University of Central Lancashire, UK.

Executive Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, aged
52. Mr. Leong joined the Group in June 1999 and was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in April 2013. He has been a director and
President of IDT Technology Limited (“ITL"), the operating subsidiary of the
Value Manufacturing Services business of the Group, since October 1999.
He is responsible for managing the day-to-day business operations, strategic
business planning and development of ITL. Mr. Leong holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Industrial Engineering obtained from the University of
Tennessee, USA and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Warwick, UK.

Board of Directors
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Board of Directors

==

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
aged 64. Mr. Lo was appointed in July 1990. Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered
accountant with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lo has over 31 years of experience in banking, finance and investments.
He worked for a number of well known financial institutions including serving
as a managing director of Indosuez Asia Limited, Suez Asia Investment
Management Ltd., HG Asia Limited, ABN Amro Asia Limited and PrimeCredit
Limited. He has the relevant experience in internal controls and in preparing
and auditing comparable financial statements as well as experience in
reviewing or analysing audited financial statements of public companies. Mr.
Lo is currently Chairman of Shanghai Century Capital Ltd. and a non-executive
director of Bosera Asset Management (International) Co., Limited. He is an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee
of Mecox Lane Limited, a listed company on Nasdag. Mr. Lo is also an
independent non-executive director and members of the audit and valuation
committees and Chairman of the nomination committee of The Taiwan Fund
Inc., which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He also serves as an
independent non-executive director, audit committee chairman and member
of the compensation committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; an independent
non-executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the
nomination committee of Playmates Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director and member of the audit and nomination committees
of Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited, all are
Hong Kong publicly listed companies.

Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and Remuneration
Committee, aged 60. Mr. Kao was appointed in June 1997. He has over 25
years of business and professional experience in investment banking and
corporate finance. Mr. Kao holds an Honours Business Administration Degree
from Richard Ivey School of Business, The University of Western Ontario and is
a Chartered Accountant qualified in Canada.
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Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee and Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee, aged 73. Mr. Schmuckli was appointed in
May 1999. He has over 36 years of professional executive product marketing
experience in the photographic and electronics industries. He had been the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sony Europe GmbH for 14 years and
had also been an executive member of the board of Sony Corporation, Tokyo.

Independent Non-Executive Director, aged 70. Dr. Ohmae was appointed
in August 2001. He is a world renowned management consultant and
was selected as one of the five management gurus in the world by The
Economist in 1994. Dr. Ohmae received his Ph.D. in nuclear engineering from
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and an honorary doctorate from
Notre Dame University. He is an expert in formulating creative strategies and
developing organizational concepts for both the private and public sectors.
He is the founder and President and Chief Executive Officer of Business
Breakthrough, Inc. and before that, had been a partner of McKinsey &
Company, Inc., an international management consulting firm, for 23 years.

Board of Directors
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Directors’ Report
ESETHMES

The directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their annual report
and audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in the investment holdings, design, development, manufacture,
sales and marketing of various consumer electronic products. Details of the
principal activities of the Group's subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2013 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 53 and further
analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2013 was paid (2012: Nil)
to the shareholders of the Company.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend to the shareholders of the Company (2012: Nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 56, and the financial information of the Company on page 132,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$19.4 million (2012: HK$16.6 million) on the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment for the purpose of business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
HK$616,000 (2012: HK$663,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 21% of the
Group's purchases and the purchases attributable to the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 8% of the Group's purchases.

During the year, the aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was approximately 25% of the Group's
turnover and the percentage of turnover attributable to the Group's largest
customer was approximately 10% of the Group's turnover.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any
interest in any of the five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive:

Raymond Chan, Jp, Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

Leong Mun Hoong (appointed on April 8, 2013)

Independent Non-Executive:
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Kao Ying Lun

Jack Schmuckli

Kenichi Ohmae

In accordance with Bye-law 89 of the Company's Bye-Laws, Mr. Leong Mun
Hoong, who was appointed by the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) on April 8, 2013, will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-
election.

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Lo Kai Yiu,
Anthony and Dr. Kenichi Ohmae will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The retiring directors, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Company considered all the
independent non-executive directors as independent.
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Directors’” Report
ESETHMES

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Leong Mun Hoong has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from April 8, 2013 which
can be terminated by either party giving a three month’s written notice to
the other party. Each of the independent non-executive directors has also
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from November 10, 2010 which can be terminated by either
party giving a three month's written notice to the other party. Under such
service contract, Mr. Leong Mun Hoong and each of the independent non-
executive directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. Mr.
Leong Mun Hoong is entitled to a fee of HK$50,000 per annum and each of
the independent non-executive directors is entitled to a fee of HK$200,000
per annum subject to such adjustments as the Board considers appropriate
and with the approval of the shareholders at annual general meeting of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company offering for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at March 31, 2013, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code") were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Directors’” Report
EETHES

ESoRSER @

No. of shares held

FERGEE
Number of
underlying
% of  shares held
Personal Family Corporate the issued  under equity
Name interests interests interests Total capital derivatives
PRI
FfTETR
EERT KEZAH
#E BAER RikER NREER #y  RAEOH RO A
(note 3)
(FizE3)
Raymond Chan BRIEX 105,505,102 314,482,303 1,010,730,270 1,430,717,675 57.18% 8,120,000
(note 1) (note 2)
(BzE1) (B#E2)
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley BREE L 109,291,431 1,116,235,372 205,190,872 1,430,717,675 57.18% 7,080,000
(note 1) (note 2)
iEa)) (PiEE2)
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRE 1,711,779 - - 1,711,779 0.07% 6,040,000
Kao Ying Lun SES - - - - - 6,040,000
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 1,667,200 - - 1,667,200 0.07% 6,040,000
Kenichi Ohmae RETH— - - - - - 6,040,000

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares/underlying
shares of the Company.

Notes:

(1) Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley is the wife of Dr. Raymond Chan. The personal and

corporate interests of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley are disclosed as the family
interests of Dr. Raymond Chan. The personal and corporate interests of Dr. Raymond
Chan are disclosed as the family interests of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

1,010,730,270 ordinary shares are held by Integrated Display Technology Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is wholly owned by Dr.
Raymond Chan. 205,190,872 ordinary shares are held by Raymax Time Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is wholly owned by
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the sub-section entitled
“Share Option Schemes” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company or any of their associates had, as at March 31, 2013, any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions
of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’” Report
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on August 28, 2002 (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) has expired on August 27, 2012. On August
29, 2012, the Company passed a resolution in the annual general meeting
for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”). Outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to such expiration shall continue to be valid and, subject to the
vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.

Details of each of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the outstanding options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
held by the directors during the financial year ended March 31, 2013 were as
follows:

ARAFRR =TT _FNA -+ N\BRANE R ERT S
(=2 _FREEA D ER=_T——-F/\A=-1+t
BE® - R_FT-——FA\A-1+AA AREEERE
FRELBEAZRCRAFTBERESS (2T —=

FREETE) R LMW RE - TT _FBR
RETEERBERARITENBREDEEES R LR

HEB% TRE-TT - EMRE B T I
e
SR LR LR VEE BEES T EE

aila%@ﬁéé!ﬁ‘%x&ﬂﬁﬁ%zeﬂﬁo

—EE - E R
HE_ZT-—=F="A=+—"HILMBFE EF2RE_
TR FHEREEFE 2B ARTTRBREZFEN
T

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise
price Outstanding Outstanding
Directors Date of grant  Exercisable period per share at4.1.2012 at 3.31.2013
RZB-=fF RZB-=F
mA—-AH =ZA=+-8
= REBH TR BRTEE i RATEE i RAT
(M/D/Y) (M/D1Y) (HKS)
(R/8/%) (R/B/%) (%)
Raymond Chan BRIEX 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 3,120,000 3,120,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,500,000 2,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,500,000 2,500,000
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley BReEL 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 2,080,000 2,080,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,500,000 2,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 2,500,000 2,500,000
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony AR 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
Kao Ying Lun Sy 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
Kenichi Ohmae ApiHf— 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 1,000,000 1,000,000
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No option was granted, lapsed, cancelled or exercised by the directors under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme
No option was granted to the directors under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors of the
Company during the year and their outstanding balances at March 31, 2013
are set out in the sub-section entitled “Share Option Schemes” above and
also in note 26 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at March 31, 2013, the following persons (other than the directors or the
chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:

Directors’ Report
EETHMES
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No. of % of the issued

Name shares held share capital
HEBITRE

=L sl B & A Btk
Integrated Display Technology Limited (note 1) (Bf##£1) 1,010,730,270 40.39%
Raymax Time Company Limited (note 2) (Fff5¥2) 205,190,872 8.20%

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares of the
Company.

Notes:

(1) Integrated Display Technology Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is wholly owned by Dr. Raymond Chan. Such corporate interests are also
disclosed in the sub-section entitled “Directors’ Interests in Securities” above.

(2) Raymax Time Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is wholly owned by Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. Such corporate interests are also
disclosed in the sub-section entitled “Directors’ Interests in Securities” above.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at March 31, 2013 which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save for the share options set out in the sub-section entitled “Share Option
Schemes” above and also in note 26 to the financial statements, the
Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights at March 31, 2013.

Other than the issue and exercise of share options pursuant to the share
option schemes of the Company as explained above, there was no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights of the
Company during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement schemes are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group's remuneration policy are set out on page 16 of this
annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by officers of the Group (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that they fully complied
with the required standards set out in both the Model Code and the Code
throughout the year ended March 31, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance.
The Group’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from page 32 to page 50 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year
ended March 31, 2013 as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Raymond Chan, Jp Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
Chairman & Group Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer

June 26, 2013
Hong Kong

Directors’ Report
EETHES

BrEERE
AD R E MRS B R EA DI 8 B A D AR
PIRREREREFRG 2 ELBERZRE -

RADNBIERE

RABEE2 A8 REAQTES2 RRERERA
AREFHAOE ARARBET=F=A=+—
ALLFENE &R ETRAFMAEZ ARHRE-

B BUEm
—EHREREH « MR R TR TR 2R
ARBRARABEREBTAY L TURE -

REEFS

BRI KPm+ REEE
FREREETHARR HITEE

s

IDT International Limited & kBB AR A &) 3 rl
Annual Report 9()13 F %



Corporate Governance Report
TRERBES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. Throughout the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions and where
applicable, the recommended best practices prescribed in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), with the exception of code provisions
A.2.1 (separation of roles of the chairman and chief executive officer) and
C.1.2 (provision of monthly updates to all directors). This report describes its
corporate governance practices, explains the applications of the principles of
the CG Code and deviations during the year under review.

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1 Board

1.1.1 The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

1.1.2 The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

o establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

o determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance
objectives of the Group;

. monitor management performance;

o approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding
proposals, key funding and investment proposals;

o oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal
controls, risk management, financial reporting and compliance;

o approve the nominations of directors and appointment of key
personnel; and

° assume responsibility for corporate governance.

1.1.3 The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
directors and senior executives, while reserving certain key matters
for its approval. Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive directors who have attended at
Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the
management.
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1.1.4

Corporate Governance Report

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines on matters that requires
its approval to achieve a clear division of the responsibilities of the
Board and the management. Matters requiring the Board’s approval
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate
governance practices, legal and regulatory compliance, internal control
and risk management, corporate strategy, operating and capital
budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members, major
transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy of
directors and senior management, financial authorization and approval
limits for operating and capital expenditure, the procurement of goods
and services, and the acquisition and disposal of investments. Apart
from matters that specifically require the Board’s approval — such as the
issue of shares, dividend distributions and other returns to shareholders
— the Board approves transactions exceeding certain threshold limit,
while delegating authority for transactions below those limits to
Executive Committee so as to facilitate operational efficiency.

The Board meets regularly. In addition to at least 4 scheduled meetings
each year, it meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances.
Meetings via telephone or video-conference are permitted under the
Bye-Laws of the Company. A record of the number of Board meetings
and Board committees meetings held during the financial year ended
March 31, 2013 is set out in the table on page 44.

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active
participation and contribution from Board members, the Board has
established executive committee, audit committee, nomination and
corporate governance committee and remuneration committee with
specific and clear written terms of reference to assist in the execution
of their duties. The terms of reference of each of the Board committees
are reviewed from time to time, as are the committees’ structure and
memberships. A further description of each of these committees is set
out below. Board committees report to the Board on their works and
findings. They adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures
and arrangements of the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of
meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion of agenda items, recording
and availability of minutes.

The company secretary attends all Board/Board committees meetings.
All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board/Board committees procedures are observed and
advising the Board/Board committees on compliance matters.

To address the competing time commitments of directors who sit on
multiple boards, Board/Board committees meetings dates are scheduled
well in advance at the beginning of every calendar year. Notices
of regular Board/Board committees meetings are given at least 14
days before the meeting date. For all other Board/Board committees
meetings, reasonable notices are given.

1.1.4
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1.1.9 All directors were given the opportunities to include matters to be
discussed in the agenda of Board/Board committees meetings. The
company secretary is delegated with the responsibility to prepare
these agendas and, where appropriate, take into account any matters
proposed by each director/committee member for inclusion in the
agenda.

1.1.10 Other than in exceptional circumstances, an agenda accompanied by
detailed board papers (prepared in such form and quality as will enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it,
including but not limited to, background or explanatory information
relating to matters to be brought before the Board and internal financial
information such as quarterly management accounts, forecasts and
budgets with material variance between projections and actual results
explained) are circulated to all directors in a timely manner and at least
three days before the date of scheduled meeting.

1.1.11 Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded in detail
the matters considered by the participants of such meetings and
decisions reached, including concerns raised by directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant directors/
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings are
held for comments and before being approved by the Board/Board
committees and taken as the true records of the proceedings of such
meetings at the immediate following meetings. They are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any director.

1.1.12 Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate
explanation and information about the Company and its subsidiaries,
its activities, performances and its projects particularly including any
significant variances from a planned course of actions to enable them to
make an informed decision or assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
In the case when the directors have queries, they are provided with the
names and contact details of the Group's senior executives for separate
and independent access to them and they are able to obtain more
information than is volunteered by the management. Senior executives
are from time to time brought into formal and informal contact with the
Board at Board meetings and other events.

1.1.13 The Board and Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to properly discharge their duties including access to independent
professional advisers under agreed procedures, upon reasonable
request, at the expense of the Company.

1.1.141f a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than a written resolution of the Board. The Board will take into
account the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set out in
the Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall not vote on
any board resolution approving any matters in which he has material
interest or shall he be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.
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1.1.15The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance cover to indemnify directors of the Group against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by the directors in the
execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation thereto.

1.1.16 Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional

1.2
1.2.1

development so as to refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging
their duties and responsibilities. During the year ended March 31, 2013,
relevant reading materials including regulatory update and seminar
handouts, etc have been provided to the directors for their reference
and studying.

A summary of training received by the directors according to the records
provided by them is as follows:

Updates and Briefings

oE A=

fi= -’F&l:ﬂa

B ARBECRFREEZERGABEETRR - U

T ASERBMEE2EAREEXUR

on the Group's

business development
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Training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development and
other relevant topics

ZFE%%%EZ ﬁﬁgﬂ}_i E‘-/l:l EEM%E&
EHNREEE Hi AR R 2 5 3
Attend
Seminars/
Give Talks Briefings/
Attend Read and Book Conferences/
Give Talks Briefings Materials Publications ~ Workshops
HERE/
[F:3-=p
BERK mae/
Directors = B HEGHS BEER iR 1 THEH
Executive: BT
Raymond Chan BRIE v v/ v/
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley PREE & v/ v/
Independent Non-Executive: B FEH 1T
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony R v/ v/ v
Kao Ying Lun = R v/ v
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli v
Kenichi Ohmae KBIAT— v v
Board Composition 1.2 EEEHER

The Board composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee on an annual
basis and it will make recommendations to the Board after the review.
The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee has devised
guidelines for ideal board size, optimum number of executive and non-
executive directors and board membership criteria and those guidelines
shall be reviewed and revised periodically to meet business needs of the
Group.
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1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5
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At March 31, 2013, the Board comprised six directors of whom two are
executive directors (including the Chairman) and four are independent
non-executive directors. The size of the Board is conducive to effective
discussion and decision-making and has an appropriate balance of
independent directors to exercise independent judgement.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the existing directors are
considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking
into account the scope and nature of its operations. The directors
have a mix of core competencies in areas such as accounting and
finance, business and management, industry knowledge and marketing
strategies. The names, experience and qualifications of directors and
the relationship amongst them, if any, are set out in the “Board of
Directors” section from page 21 to page 23 of this annual report.

Independent non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors. They are expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the directors of the Company. The functions of independent
non-executive directors include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment
to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on board committees, if invited; and

° scrutinizing the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

In assessing the independence of the directors, the Board has examined
the different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might
impair the directors’ independence and objectivity. The Board considers
that all of the independent non-executive directors are independent and
is satisfied of the directors’ ability to act with independent judgement.
Each of the independent non-executive directors has provided to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence required by the
Listing Rules.
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1.3.4

1.35
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Details of the membership of the Board (including the independent
non-executive directors) and roles and functions of directors are posted
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website and such
information is updated whenever there are changes.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Appointment of new directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee. It reviews the
profiles of the candidates and makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-nomination and retirement of directors.

At each annual general meeting ("AGM"), one-third of the directors are
required to retire from office. The directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election. New directors appointed by the Board after the last AGM shall
retire and are eligible for re-election at the AGM immediately following
their appointments. The new directors shall not be taken into account
in determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at
that AGM. Mr. Leong Mun Hoong, who was appointed after the 2012
AGM, will retire at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony and
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. All
retiring directors are eligible for re-election.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term of
three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at AGM in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The names and biographical details of the directors who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out in the
circular to shareholders to assist shareholders in making an informed
decision on their elections.

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive induction and
reference materials to enable him/her to familiarize with the Group's
history, mission, business operations and board and company policies.
Each director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and business of
the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under
statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Company.
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1.4 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

1.4.1 Dr. Raymond Chan assumes the role of both the chairman and the
group chief executive officer of the Company. While serving as the
chairman responsible for the proceedings of the Board, Dr. Chan also
bears executive responsibility for the Group's businesses. He ensures

that:

the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a timely
manner;

good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and all directors are encouraged to make full and
active participation to the affairs of the Group; and

the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. He also
attends to the formulation and successful implementation of
group policies, the development of strategic operating plans
to reflect the longer-term objectives and priorities established
by the Board and is directly accountable to the Board for the
operating performance of the Group. With the assistance of the
management, Dr. Chan ensures that the funding requirements
of the businesses are met and closely monitors the operating
and financial results against plans and budgets, taking remedial
actions when necessary and advising the Board of significant
development and issues. He is also responsible for building and
maintaining an effective executive team to support him in his
role.

1.4.2 The role of chairman and group chief executive officer of the Group
rests on the same individual during the aforesaid period which deviates
from the code provision in the CG Code of not having a clear division
of responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and authority. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision-making for the following reasons:

38

the non-executive directors form the majority of the Board of
which 4 out of a total of 6 are independent; and

through discussions with the chairman and among themselves
during board meetings and beyond on pertinent issues affecting
the affairs and businesses of the Group, these independent
directors challenge the proposals and directions of the
management, thus enabling the Board to benefit from the
objective judgment.
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1.4.3 Dr. Chan is one of the founders and a substantial shareholder of the
Group and has considerable industry experience. The Board is of the
view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have an executive
chairman so that the Board, and in particular the non-executive
directors, can have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable
about the business of the Group and is most capable to guide
discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues
and developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board and
the management. He is also motivated to contribute to the growth and
profitability of the Group.

1.4.4 Other than regular board meetings, the chairman from time to time
meets with individual independent non-executive directors without
the executive directors or management present to discuss matters of
particular interest.

1.5 Board Committee

1.5.1 Executive Committee (“EC")

1.5.1.1 The EC of the Board comprises of all executive directors. The quorum
necessary for transaction of business is two.

15.1.2The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day
management of the Group and has all the general powers of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the Board.

1.5.1.3 The principal duties of EC include:

° to manage the business and investments by overseeing the
Group's operations, projects, assets and liabilities, budgets,
compliance obligations and financial performance in accordance
with the policies and directives of the Board;

° to make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's overall
policies, strategies and financial objectives in the development of
its business and to ensure their implementation and execution;
and

° to provide leadership to staff and management and to nominate
key personnel and ensure appropriate levels of authority are
delegated to them.

1.5.1.4 Eighteen meetings of the EC were held during the year ended March
31, 2013. All resolutions resolved by the EC are reported to the Board at
quarterly Board meetings.
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1.5.2 Nomination and corporate governance committee (“NCGC")

15.2.1The NCGC comprises of a majority of independent non-executive
directors, which meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Jack
Schmuckli and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying
Lun and Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All NCGC members, with
the exception of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent
non-executive directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business is two.

1522 The terms of reference of the NCGC are posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. The principal functions
of the NCGC include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new appointments
or re-appointments of directors, the establishment of a succession
plan for directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive
officer and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional directors or to fill vacancy

in the Board as and when they arise;

° to review on an annual basis the Board structure, size and
composition and the independent element of the Board;

° to develop the criteria for selection of directors;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

° to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

1.5.2.3 The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its proceedings
and recommendations after each meeting.
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1.5.2.4 The main work performed by NCGC during the year ended March 31,

2013 include the review of structure and composition of the Board;
the assessment of independence of existing independent non-executive
directors and the recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of a new executive director, re-election of retiring directors and the
adoption of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy.

1.5.3 Remuneration Committee (“RC")
1.5.3.1The RC comprises a majority of independent non-executive directors,

which meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli
and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying Lun and
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All RC members, with the exception
of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent non-executive
directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.

1.5.3.2 The terms of reference of the RC are posted on the Stock Exchange's

website and the Company’s website. The RC consults the chairman and
chief executive officer about its proposals relating to the remuneration
of other executive directors and have access to professional advice if
considered necessary. The principal functions of the RC include:

° to recommend to the Board on the Company’'s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group;

° to recommend to the Board the remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management; and

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives.

1.5.3.3 The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and

recommendations, where appropriate, for the Board’s consideration
and/or approval.

1.5.3.4The main work performed by RC during the year ended March 31,

2013 include the review and the approval of the new incentive schemes
of executives; the employees’ annual salary increment commencing
from April 1, 2012 and the recommendation to the Board on the
directors’ fees paid during the year ended March 31, 2012, grant of
share options to the management of the Group and the service contract
of a newly appointed executive director.

1.5.3.5 A general description of the Group’s emolument policy and long-term

incentive schemes as well as the basis of determining the emolument
payable to the directors are disclosed on page 16 of this annual report.
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1.5.4 Audit Committee (“AC")

1.5.4.1 The AC consists of three members, namely, Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony
(chairman), Mr. Kao Ying Lun and Mr. Jack Schmuckli, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that
the majority of the members of the AC possess accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

1.5.4.2 The operations of the AC are regulated by its terms of reference which
have been approved by the Board and is subject to review by the Board
from time to time. The terms of reference of the AC are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. The major duties
of AC include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

° to review and monitor external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendation of any measures for improvements to be taken;

o to monitor integrity of financial statements, annual and interim
reports and to review significant financial reporting judgement
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements and the annual and
the interim reports before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i)~ major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;
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(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting; and

(vii) any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function or auditors;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that the management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

to consider major investigations of findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management'’s response and to ensure that the Board will provide
a timely response to the issues raised;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the arrangements the Group’s employees can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action; and

to report to the Board on matters set out above and to consider
other topics, as defined by the Board.
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1543 The AC has explicit authority to investigate into any matter under the

scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent professional
advice. It is given full access to and cooperation of the management.
It has been provided with reasonable resources to discharge its duties
properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the Group Chief
Financial Officer to gather relevant information. At least once a year, the
AC meets the external auditors without the management present.

15.44The major work performed by the AC include the review and

consideration of the announcements relating to the Group’s interim
and annual results; interim and annual reports; significant accounting
and audit issues arising from annual audit of the Group's financial
statements; periodic reports from internal audit department; internal
audit plan as well as external auditor’s audit and non-audit fees.

1.5.45 Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary of the

1.6

44

Company. Draft and finalized minutes of the AC meetings are circulated
to all members of the AC for their comment and records respectively, in
both cases within reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.

The following table summarizes the attendance of individual directors
and committee members in the financial year under review:

154A3EREZERAERMEN RAREHEREE
MEENERERBYEXER YREEER
HEANXERBOAE BERZE W ERH
REMNER UWHABETEARL EFRMAEKE
ZHBERMBRET ERZEEREEILE
BV BEEREHEARSEHEEN BREE
ERLEBF-RANEREL MESBER T EINE
73 Gl

1SA4BREEBEETZIETFREENREES
MARETHREFEE QM PHREER
S BEERAREMBBRERMEL ZERES
NEZEH: REETH 2 ERWE AEEZ
FHEI RN 2 B M EE R B

1545 BREZ B G HESRLEAARRAARIMETF
B BRZESOACHZERMERAR NE
BERE-BRAERHNEETE2REXZES
KRB AHEEREEERFRE-

1.6 EREERZESSENDBEYBRFEALES

AR

No. of Meeting attended/No. of Meeting held

HEESEAY ERETAY

Nomination
and
Corporate
Executive Audit  Governance Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee 2012 AGM
RER
TEER —E--%
EE® HTZEE ENZEE ZE® ¥FMZERE RREFAE
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(B3ET) (H3E2) (P3E3)
Number of meetings held ERETRY 4 18 3 1 1 1
Executive Director BTEE
Raymond Chan BR1E S 4/4 18/18 - - - 17
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley BReEL 4/4 18/18 - 1N 1n n
Independent Non-Executive Director BYFHITES
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony RERE 44 - 33 - - 1
Kao Ying Lun SE 4/4 - 33 1n 1n 17N
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 4/4 - 33 7 " -
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Notes: (1) Apart from the duly convened meeting of the directors, resolutions

in writing were circulated and passed by all directors on one occasion
during the financial year ended March 31, 2013.

(2) Apart from the duly convened meeting of the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee, resolutions in writing were
circulated and passed by all committee members on two occasions
during the financial year ended March 31, 2013.

(3) Apart from the duly convened meeting of the Remuneration
Committee, resolutions in writing were circulated and passed by all
committee members on one occasion during the financial year ended
March 31, 2013.

Securities Transactions by Officers

The Company has adopted a Code for Securities Transactions by
Officers of the Group (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the "Model Code") contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that
they fully complied with the required standards set out in both the
Model Code and the Code throughout the year ended March 31, 2013.

Officers as defined in the Code who is deemed to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
shares are prohibited from dealing in shares of the Company during the
black-out period.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2013, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

1.7
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1.7.2
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2.1
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Management recognizes the importance of providing the Board with
appropriate and relevant information on an accurate and timely basis.
Quarterly business review and financial reports comparing the Group's
actual performance with budget and highlighting major relevant issues
are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment
on the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Under the CG
Code, monthly updates are required to be provided to all directors
effective April 1, 2012. The monthly updates for April and May 2012
were not provided to the directors due to changes in personnel.
However, these two months’ results have been included in the quarter
results for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and reviewed by the
directors. With effect from July 2012, monthly updates were provided
to all directors to enable them to discharge their duties under the Listing
Rules.

The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects to extend to the
Group's financial reporting including annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls
and is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group's assets.

The Group's internal control system encompasses its policies, processes,
tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

o facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it
to respond appropriately to significant business, operational,
financial, compliance and other risks with a view of achieving
business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of assets
from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that
liabilities are identified and managed,

° help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external
reporting; and

° help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations,
and also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of
business.
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2.2.5
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The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

° A distinct organization structure exists with defined lines of
authority and responsibilities. Division/Departments Heads
are involved in preparing the strategic plan which laid down
the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational
and financial targets. Both the strategic plan and the annual
operating plan laid down the foundation for the preparation of
the annual budget by which resources are allocated in accordance
with identified and prioritized business opportunities. The annual
operating plan has been approved by the Executive Committee
subject to regular review. The strategic plan has been presented
to the Board by management subject to regular review and the
annual budget is approved by the Board yearly;

° A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in
place providing financial and operational performance indicators
to the management, and the relevant financial information for
reporting and disclosure purpose. Variances against budgets are
analyzed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if
necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

° System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage
and control risks including legal, credit, market, operational,
environmental, behavioral and system risks that may have an
impact on the Group.

The Group's Internal Audit Department (“IA") performs regular audit
reviews of the risks and key controls of the Group. IA plays an important
role in monitoring the Group's internal governance, evaluating the
quality of the internal control system and informing the Board whether
a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with agreed processes and standards. To
preserve the independence of the internal audit function, the Head of
IA reports directly to the AC on audit matters and to the chief executive
officer on administrative matters.
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Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its internal
audit projects annually in consultation with, but independent of,
management. The audit methodology and process adopted by IA
include understanding and analyzing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes, analyzing and evaluating the process control
effectiveness and communicating results and follow up. Independent
reviews of different financial, business and functional operations and
activities will be conducted with audit resources being focused on
higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of
concern identified by the AC and the management.

Division/Department Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies
noted for rectification, and IA will follow up with the implementation
of audit recommendations. Significant internal control weaknesses are
brought to the attention of the AC and if necessary to the Board, and to
the senior management for remedial actions.

The Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal control covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. The Board, through the review of the AC, is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions on
internal controls during the year under review as set forth in the CG
Code.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the fees paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company'’s external auditor, for audit services of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to HK$4.3 million (2012: HK$4.6 million) and
for non-audit related services, representing mainly taxation services,
amounted to HK$0.1 million (2012: HK$0.1 million).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information
in a clear, detailed, timely manner and on a regular basis and to take
into consideration their views and inputs, and address shareholders’
concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the
publication of annual and interim reports, results announcements and
press release. All shareholders’ communications are also available on the
Stock Exchange's website at www.hkex.com or the Company’s website
at www.idthk.com.

The AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
AC, NCGC and/or RC, or in their absence, members of the Board
committees are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual directors.
Votes cast on each resolution at the general meetings are properly
counted and recorded.

At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answers will be provided if there
are any questions from the shareholders. The poll results are posted on
the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM")

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws
shall, on the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and addressed to the company secretary
and deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the SGM.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM
should submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed
contact information to the company secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out their contact
information and addressed to the company secretary and deposited at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Ms. Fung Yee Man, is responsible to the Board
for ensuring that the Board procedures and policies are followed. She
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the
relevant regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to
the Group and facilitating the induction and professional development
of directors. During the year under review, Ms. Fung has attended
relevant professional seminars to update her knowledge and skills.
She will comply with the Listing Rules to take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognized that effective communication to investors is
the key to establish investor confidence and attracting new investors.
Measures taken by the Group include:

Annual & Interim Reporting

Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders
within the prescribed period stipulated by the Stock Exchange. All
results announcements and reports are posted on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website.

Media and Analysts Briefings

Briefings for media and analysts are organized by the Company
from time to time. During the briefings, the Group’s management
provides detailed explanations on the Group's business trends and
drivers in respect of the relevant periods and ensures that the financial
performance and accounts of the Group are well understood. There
is also ample opportunity for the analysts and media to ask questions
and interact with the executive directors and senior management. All
presentation materials on the Group's financial results, announcements
and news release are available on the Company’s website.

The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards
received, product launches and the latest news of the Group's
developments on the Company’s website. The public are welcome to
give their comments and make their enquiries through the Company’s
website and the management will provide their prompt response.
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IDT International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 53 to 130, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZEEHREE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2013 and of the Group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

June 26, 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

reETHWES

For the year ended March 31, 2013 &

Emt

=F=RA=t+—HILLEFE

2013 2012
NOTES HKS$'M HK$'M
gz BEEER BEEET
Turnover e 5 1,578.2 1,597.1
Cost of goods sold HER A (1,136.4) (1,112.6)
Gross profit E A 441.8 4845
Other income H b Was 17.3 215
Other gains and losses Hh pris kg8 6 42.1 (6.4)
Research and development costs M RHEER (72.5) (85.0)
Distribution and selling expenses I RHERX (268.8) (247.1)
General administrative expenses —RRITI R X2 (168.9) (186.4)
Interest on bank and other borrowings ERAFAEHEE ZRIT
wholly repayable within five years BERAEMEEZFE (6.8) (6.4)
Loss before taxation BRI E 8 7 (15.8) (25.3)
Taxation L 10 (13.1) (5.1)
Loss for the year attributable to RAEER ANES
owners of the Company AEEEIE (28.9) (30.4)
Other comprehensive expense: Ht2mEAX:
Exchange differences arising on BREBINETSE £ 1)
translation of foreign operations ME W = &8 (10.1) (16.1)
Total comprehensive expenses RNEE2HEMZEE
for the year (39.0) (46.5)
Loss per share FiREE
— Basic and diluted —EAREE 11 (1.16) HK cents B#4lL  (1.22) HK cents AL
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

an (=) jﬁ%ﬁﬁ;ﬂl%

At March 31,2013 R=F—=F=A=+—H

3.31.2013 3.31.2012
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
P =E BETET TEHE & T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI AR RS 12 65.2 88.1
Intangible assets mEEE 13 45.1 58.0
Goodwill EES 14 33.8 339
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 15 0.9 0.9
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEE 16 19.6 26.4
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, ENEEME MR REE
plant and equipment ZE & 0.5 3.4
165.1 210.7
Current assets mBEE
Inventories FE 17 277.9 253.5
Trade and other receivables & U BR 30 R HL At B U RN IR 18 297.6 215.7
Forward contract assets RHAHNEE 23 0.3 0.2
Short-term bank deposits 5ERRITE AITE X 20 5.2 50.0
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIE S 20 311.8 287.5
892.8 806.9
Current liabilities mBaE
Trade and other payables and JE 1) BR 5% B2 H At JE < 30IR J2 21
accruals ERE A 249.1 239.9
Obligations under finance leases due ER—FNEEZINE 22
within one year L EB 0.5 0.5
Taxation payable FEBBIIR 2.8 4.5
Bank loans RITE R 24 261.3 102.0
Bank overdrafts RITHEL 24 0.6 =
514.3 346.9
Net current assets mBAEEFE 378.5 460.0
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 543.6 670.7
Non-current liabilities EE =K
Obligations under finance leases due BARBA—FRERZMT 22
after one year HHEB 0.1 0.6
Bank loans IRITER 24 - 90.0
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEE 16 0.3 2.9
0.4 93.5
Net assets BEFE 543.2 577.2
54 IDT International Limited & /& EIFE AR A7)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R AR

At March 31,2013 R=FT—=F=A=+—H

3.31.2013 3.31.2012
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
i BEBET BE BB

Capital and reserves AR A R A
Share capital %N 25 250.2 250.2
Reserves & 292.9 326.9
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANA&H#E A AE(E =S 543.1 577.1
Non-controlling interests FEIE MR A 0.1 0.1
Total equity REmiAE 543.2 577.2

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 130 were approved $53BZ£130BE 2GR MBREREN T —=F /A
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 26, 2013 and are  —+/NAESE S & RFERT WH FHIALTRE

signed on its behalf by: BE:
Raymond Chan, Jp Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
BRIES » AF#+ Wb S
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
FEREE TR HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/-ﬁ *E/ m 5 EJJ ’15«“:2

For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_ZT—=F=A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NGk 2 PNGE
Properties Share Non-
Share Share Other revaluation options  Translation Revenue controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests equity
ES BRE g% FER
BRE  ROGEE  HttREE SRR mE  RERE KBRS B i ERAE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET AKBER A%eBErx #A%aEn B%EEn BEEEn BEEEn BEEEx BKBEETR
At April 1,2011 RZZ——5MA—-H 2502 151.6 325 279 25 (56.9) 2137 6215 0.1 6216
Exchange differences REFNEBEEL
arising from translation of EXZER
foreign operations - - - - - (16.1) - (16.1) - (16.1)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - = - = (30.4) (30.4) = (30.4)
Total comprehensive expenses N [E 2 H & 2%
for the year - - - - - (16.1) (30.4) (46.5) - (46.5)
Recognition of equity-settled  FEFRIAREZS 37 (436 I
share based payments RIPREEZHH - - - - 2.1 - - 2.1 = 2.1
Lapse of share options BB AR R A - - - - (0.4) - 0.4 = = =
At March 31, 2012 RZT——F
=R=+-H 250.2 151.6 325 27.9 42 (73.0) 183.7 577.1 0.1 5772
Exchange differences BMEBNEBEL L
arising from translation of ~ EX Z%
foreign operations - - - - - (10.1) - (10.1) - (10.1)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (28.9) (28.9) = (28.9)
Total comprehensive expenses A [£ 2 E & 2%
for the year - - - - - (10.1) (28.9) (39.0) - (39.0)
Release of reserve upon R EMEmMBRA
disposal of properties Rt - - - (15.9) - - 15.9 - - -
Reversal of deferred tax HENEM
previously recognised in & A AT RERR Y
relation to disposal of RERR
properties - - - 26 - - - 26 - 26
Recognition of equity-settled  HEFRIA#E 2R 37 (1 I
share based payments BRI BEEZFAR - - = = 24 = = 24 = 24
Lapse of share options BRI - - - - (0.6) - 0.6 = = =
At March 31, 2013 RZZ—=%
=ZA=+—A8 250.2 151.6 325 14.6 6.0 (83.1) 1713 543.1 0.1 543.2
5 6 IDT International Limited & & BB R A F
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\

Iﬁa%/)lb%%

For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILEE

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEEBET BB EEBIT
Cash flows from operating activities KETHEECRERE
Loss before taxation Br LA 2 518 (15.8) (25.3)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income K B U A (1.6) (1.4)
Interest expenses FEXH 6.8 6.4
Share-based payment expenses LARR 9 R B 2 R X 2.4 2.1
Depreciation of property, plant and M MR REREITE
equipment 30.7 60.7
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE 2 24.7 21.8
Gain on disposal of property, plant B MRS KRR E 2
and equipment (47.4) 0.1)
Gain on disposal of club membership HERLNe NS (0.3) -
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HERTEE 2 W - (3.4)
Impairment losses on trade receivables FE W BR B2 R E BT 1R 0.9 1.6
Impairment loss on held for trading investment RHIEEEREZREERE - 5.7
Write down of inventories Mo E 13.4 4.7
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on BARIEARERIBA S Z
inter-company balances [EREFH) e 1.3 (2.8)
Operating cash flows before movements in LBEESBYRIKEHERE
working capital 15.1 70.0
(Increase) decrease in inventories & (Em)md (42.0) 315
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables JFEE 52 B R R L At FE KRR (2200 R > (79.9) 333
Increase (decrease) in trade and other R E MR RIE R TERE A
payables and accruals #n CRd) 10.5 (31.1)
Decrease in forward contracts REIEXR D 0.1) (12.6)
Decrease in bills payables ERE&R D - (0.1)
Cash (used in) from operations LR (FTA)TERE (96.4) 91.0
Taxation paid B AR IE (8.3) (0.9)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities LIRS (FTA) TBIRE 5 (104.7) 90.1
Investing activities 5B EE
Short-term bank deposits withdrawn IRV BRER 1T E HRTE 3K 52.7 74.2
Short-term bank deposits made RS BIRTTE BTF K (7.9 (50.0)
Product development costs paid ENEDHRZER (21.4) (30.5)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEYE MR R (16.0) (15.6)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, ENEEMFE MBERERE LTS
plant and equipment (0.5) (3.4)
Payment for patents and trademarks BRI R EE 2R (0.8) (0.3)
Interest received B W) 2 1.6 1.4
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE R REHERIE
plant and equipment 58.5 0.4
Proceeds from disposal of club membership SR g IR e 28 FT 1S SR IE 1.2 =
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets &4 \Ft/éfﬁﬁfr?%?/\ - 7.3
Net cash from (used in) investing activities "E SIS (FTA)REFEE 67.4 (16.5)

IDT International Limited &gk BB B R 2 &)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ IE%/}“JE%

For the year ended March 31,2013 HE—_T—=F=A=+—HAILLFE

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BEE BT
Financing activities B RS
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (65.3) (334.1)
Interest paid 2 F &8 (6.8) (6.4)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases BRI BHAER (0.5) (0.1)
Bank loans raised HERITER 134.6 220.2
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BEEFE (FTA)REFEE 62.0 (120.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents HERERREEB 2
#n ORd) F5E 24.7 (46.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FzRekERREER 287.5 335.1
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes REEH) 7B (1.0) (0.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FR7BESRFRREIEER 311.2 2875
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReREFERB B HBRON
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEB NS 311.8 287.5
Bank overdrafts RITE X (0.6) =
311.2 287.5

58 IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R MR

For the year ended March 31, 2013 B E =T —=F=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company’s controlling shareholders are Dr. Raymond Chan and
his wife, Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. They hold a total interest of
57.18% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, development, manufacture, sales
and marketing of various consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets
Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The adoption of these amendments in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current or prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSS") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 cycle'

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities’

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and transition disclosures?

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure of
interests in other entities: Transition
guidance’

Investment entities?

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial statements’
Joint arrangements’

Disclosure of interests in other entities’
Fair value measurement!

Employee benefits'

Separate financial statements’

Investments in associates and joint
ventures'

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities?

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets?

Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine'

Levies?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B E =T —=F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and
settlement”. The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as
collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2013 and interim periods within those annual
periods. The disclosures should also be provided retrospectively for all
comparative periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not
effective until annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, with
retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being made
with regard to derivative contracts which are under master netting
agreements.
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For the year ended March 31,2013 BEZE T —=F=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSS") (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 amended in
2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement

of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

672

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B EZE =T —=F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning April 1, 2015 and the application may have an
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's available-for-
sale investments which are currently stated at cost less impairment
and will be measured at fair value upon adoption. Regarding the
Group's available-for-sale investments, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detail review has been
completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements.
HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HZE=ZT—=F=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of
these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance will be adopted in the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on April 1, 2013.
The application of these five standards will not have material impact on
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive
than those in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to
cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for annual period beginning April 1, 2013 and the
application of HKFRS 13 will not have a material effect on Group's
consolidated financial statements but may results in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement of comprehensive income” is
renamed as a “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. The amendments to HKAS 1 also retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income
to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group's annual
periods beginning on April 1, 2013. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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year ended March 31, 2013 BE T —=F=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
("its subsidiaries”). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on a prop rata basis
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZE—T—=F=A=+—HIFE

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenues from the sale of goods and moulds are recognised when the
goods and moulds are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 #{Z—Z—=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance lease) and buildings held for use in the production of goods or
for the administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or
fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” from
the requirement to make regular revaluations of the Group's land
and buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts prior to
September 30, 1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to September 30, 1995, the revaluation
increase arising on the revaluation of these assets was credited to the
properties revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value of these
assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed
the balance, if any, on the properties revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to revenue reserve.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of
the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZE—T—=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Product development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, product
development cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic
life of the relevant patents and trademarks.

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generated unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZE—T—=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement benefits scheme
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 #{Z—Z—=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available for a financial
asset, the fair value of the financial asset on that date becomes its
deemed cost. The financial asset is subsequently measured at the
deemed cost less any impairment. If a reliable measure becomes
available for a financial asset for which such a measure was previously
not available, the asset is remeasured at fair value, and the difference
between its carrying amount and fair value is recognised in profit or
loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade and other
receivables) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HZE =T —=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial organisation.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost or deemed cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 {2 —Z—=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities excluding derivatives

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank loans and
bank overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivate
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
April 1, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

78 IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
Annual Report ()13 4

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

:micnﬁﬁ%%¥&%EMﬁ

For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_T—=F=A=+—HAILFE

2ETECR (|
ﬁmlﬂﬁ)
EiERR
ERBEWRBLSREENER BHSRE
F@ ’?lJ:ﬁEp/u,\

WEIEERERBEER 2 REEREE EﬁiEHSZ
MEWREZAHHNEZEREERNEERER

AEEESEAEERE THEIERR =
LHATHABE - FLERZERAENREE
HEMRENREZRNERMNRSTER -

HhiE

NREZENEEER M B HmKRE AZE
DEEEE AN 2 G (HMNE) ETHIR 5 R 3
ZRAHMEREXGRESNEER (MZERK
EMETEREMRNOER) SR REEER
RINEEE2 EBRBEARGEEAMERERSE
MRE IV BEKRAG B ZIFEBEHEBEHA
EXBE -

) ></P ?E”\ﬁ

NEERBETERERES CELZRORNE
EHIMER AR -

RENEAMBHRRME  AREFIMNEEERT
ZEENBENRANEEAMBRERRE R/
REZHRERE (B - RS IR B TR F
B2 FaERME - FrEf 2 EXZ8 (IF) T
ERRNEt ARGk RAEEERERFERE
N2

R-ZZTASNA - B2 RRBEINRBESE
MBI B EER BB BERAREES
B DREZBENIEB2EERAR TRER
R2BTEXBRE -ZFELZRINEEHRE
FEEIRRE T 2 SR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HEZE =T —=F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in the share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share options reserve will be transferred to revenue reserve.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. At March
31, 2013, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
HK$65.2 million (2012: HK$88.1 million).

The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of a similar nature and function.
Useful lives may change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less than
previously estimated, and it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZE—T—=F=A=+—HIFE

4,

80

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Recoverability of internally generated intangible asset
During the year, management reconsidered the recoverability of its
intangible asset arising from the Group's product development, which is
included in its consolidated statement of financial position at March 31,
2013 at HK$37.6 million (2012: HK$49.2 million). The project continues
to progress in a satisfactory manner, and customer reaction has
reconfirmed management’s previous estimates of anticipated revenues
from the project. However, increased competitor activity has caused
management to reconsider its assumptions regarding future market
share and anticipated margins on these products. Detailed sensitivity
analysis has been carried out and management is confident that the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered in full, even if returns are
reduced. This situation will be closely monitored, and adjustments will
be made in future periods, if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where there is a downward revision of estimated cash
flow or when the actual cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. At March 31, 2013, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$33.8 million (2012: HK$33.9 million). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 14.

Income taxes

At March 31, 2013, a deferred tax asset of HK$21.2 million (2012:
HK$29.3 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised on tax losses of HK$710.0 million (2012:
HK$601.9 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such
a reversal takes place. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are more than expected, an addition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such
an addition takes place.

IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R &
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 #{Z—Z—=F=ZA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold
by the Group to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related
taxes. Turnover represents mainly Oregan Scientific branded sales
(“Branded Sales”) and Original Equipment Manufacturer and Original
Design Manufacturer sales (“OEM/ODM Sales”).

In prior years, the information reported to the Executive Directors
of the Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance were based on three operating divisions that included
LCD consumer electronic products, electronic learning products and
telecommunication, digital media and other consumer electronic
products.

In the current year, information reported to the CODM were
reorganized based on distinct products to different customer groups.
The reportable and operating segments were namely Sports, fitness
and healthcare, Electronic learning products, Time and weather,
Telecommunication and Wellness and beauty. In addition, energy and
other electronic products which are individually insignificant were
aggregated and reported under Others.

Sports, fitness and design, development, manufacture, and
healthcare sales and marketing of sports, fitness and
healthcare electronic products

Electronic learning — design, development, manufacture, and
products sales and marketing of electronic learning
products
Time and weather — design, development, manufacture, and

sales and marketing of time and weather
electronic products

Telecommunication - design, development, manufacture, and
sales and marketing of telecommunication
products

Wellness and beauty - design, development, manufacture, and

sales and marketing of wellness and
beauty products

Others — design, development, manufacture, and
sales and marketing of energy and other
electronic products
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_T—=F=A=+—HAILFE

82

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ZEER @
With the change of the composition of reportable segments in 2013, RE—Z—=FHTARESHEE 2HE
the comparative numbers in 2012 are restated to conform with 2013 F o —F BT REEN2IARRES
composition of reportable segments. The change in composition of T -ZFAMEDI2EE B AImE D FAE
reportable segments did not have any impact on either the financial AZHBUEZEREEN T ——F U
results or financial position of the Company in 2012. BRI AOR
Due to the above reoganisation of the Group's reporting structure that REEMMN ERERB 2 BAMNE T HBAIRE
changed the composition of the relevant cash generating unit, certain fLziE REZAGEDRIRABERETH
goodwill which was previously allocated to LCD consumer electronic BEEMAEEHENDEIBHERRETH
products were reallocated to Time and weather consumer electronic BEM- A BHIRME14 -
product unit. Details are set out in note 14.
The Group disaggregated its turnover based on branded sales and OEM/ REEERBEHEE RRRERE RBTRIEH
ODM sales and reported to the CODM. No separate results of branded EFD *ﬁ%%’ﬁlx&i%fi SEIREA o MR
sales and OEM/ODM sales were reported to the CODM. ERFERERE S RET RS E R RERE
FEZEBERRAC
Segment revenue and results ﬁ%ﬂﬂ&l&%%
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by REBREESBZWAREESNAOT :
operating and reportable segments:
Sports, Electronic Time Wellness  Reportable
fitness and learning and Telecom- and segments
healthcare products weather  munication beauty total Others Total
B9 {248 £7 BER RER THE
kfgg HEER xR E 3 AHER Hite ag
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS$'M HKS'M HKS$'M
BREEL BYEEx B¥EER EWAER EWEER EWEER EWEER B%EER
Year ended March 31, 2013 Bz-%-=%
ZAZt-ALEE
Segment revenue ABBA
Branded sales migEE 57.0 4145 239.0 16 726 784.7 132 797.9
OEM/ODM sales RekfaaE /Rakat el
HE 468.6 18.7 69.0 110.8 - 667.1 1132 7803
Total segment revenue o Nt 525.6 4332 308.0 124 72.6 14518 126.4 1,578.2
Segment profit (loss) T (EE) 6.0 (35.8) 143 27 23 (10.5) 29 (7.6)
Gain on disposal of HEREL R
leasehold land and building BF W 414
Unallocated income REAE WA 16
Unallocated expense REARZ XM (50.4)
Finance costs RMERKA (6.8)
Loss before taxation BRHAIEE (15.8)
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 Eﬁzi_gf —F=A=t+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEER
Segment revenue and results (continued) pi) %Buﬂz)\&% = ()
Sports, Electronic Time Wellness ~ Reportable
fitness and learning and Telecom- and segments
healthcare products weather  munication beauty total Others Total
&Y 28 BT B R RER TREHH
kgR  HEER x& B e ko Hit it
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AUEET ANEET A%EEnT BKEET BYEET BYEER A¥EER A¥EER
Year ended March 31, 2012 B2-%--F%
=RB=t+-ALEE
Segment revenue ABBA
Branded sales mIEHE 812 2444 3105 52 95.2 736.5 9.2 745.7
OEM/ODM sales RekfBRIE /R
HE 3534 95.1 99.0 163.9 - 7114 140.0 851.4
Total segment revenue AHWALERE 4346 3395 409.5 169.1 952 1,447.9 149.2 1,597.1
Segment profit (loss) AT (E8) 155 (4.4) 152 76 42 38.1 39 40
Unallocated income RERE WA 14
Unallocated expense FEAE 2 F i (56.6)
Impairment losses recognised in respect  EHEREBIAZ
of financial instruments REEE (5.7)
Finance costs BERR (6.4)
Loss before taxation BREAISE (253)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from EXFRE 2D BRARKMINAEF HE IR
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years. AMER - HEEEERNIBERIFE -
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as KENIMZ SABREMAIFHAEE 2 &5

the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
(loss) represents the profit (loss) earned by each segment without
allocation of interest income, gain on disposal of leasehold land
and building, impairment losses recognised in respect of financial
instruments, unallocated expense such as central administrative cost
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented as such
amounts are not reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment or otherwise regularly provided to the Group's chief
operating decision maker.

BERARR » 2 #0aEA (B518) BN 25 B8 AT BRER 2 )4
A OEE)  BEYERFSEA HEBEL K
%?ZH&E&Eﬁﬁwﬁmﬂlﬂz/ﬁfﬁgﬂaﬂi%“
Rz MERMITHRERRBEXKAELS
Jlti%ﬁﬂ$§.‘%I%‘é%‘@?&iﬁ/\?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁa&%fﬁ
A fERE 252 -

HRAEEZ S HEERS BABEIL KRB ANEE
ZEBLERRAZRADEE R R ERE K

REMARAEHERAEE 2 FELBERRA
2% EER -
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HZ—Z—=

5.

FZA=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ZEER @
Other segment information Hith o ZBE R
Sports,
fitness Electronic Time Wellness  Reportable
and learning and Telecom- and segment Unallocated
healthcare products weather  munication beauty total Others items Total
B9 2R ET KER RER THRELH K8
RiEg HBER x5 E£) £% ag Hth  SE2EA -t
HK§'M HK$'M HK§'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
E¥EET AKEEn  A%EEn  A¥EEn  B%AEn  B%EEn  B%AEn  B%AEn  A%EEn
Year ended March 31, 2013 BE-2-=F
ZA=t-BLEE
Amounts included in the measure of 5% mﬂ'kﬁﬁéﬁ?\
segment profit or loss: THlFE
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
- property, plant and equipment 0% BERRE 1.0 5.8 46 25 19 258 3.0 19 307
— intangible assets —BVEE 13 199 12 03 0.6 33 14 - 4.7
Impairment losses on trade receivable  FEMRERT 2 BB 01 - 07 - 0.1 09 - - 0.9
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERRE
plant and equipment pd ¢ - - - - - - - (47.4) (47.0)
Write down (reversal of) of inventories i (E&)F & 9.7 (0.8) 03 24 (0.4) 11.2 22 = 134
Year ended March 31, 2012 HE-®-C-F
ZA=+-BLEE
Amounts included in the measure of 43} %‘J'XE&TEEM
segment profit or loss: ToIHE
Depreciation and amortisation RERESH
~ property, plant and equipment -0% EERIE 121 15.9 9.1 14.4 19 534 46 27 607
~intangible assets -BYEE 28 105 12 52 02 199 19 - 218
Impairment losses on trade receivables  FEIRER3 2 BB 02 05 06 - 02 15 = = 15
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME BERRE
plant and equipment 2 (ks BE - - (0.2) 0.1 - (0.1) - = 0.1)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEVAE L& (1.4) (04) (0.4) 0.7) = (2.9 (0.5) = (34)
Write down of inventories HERE 05 15 20 - 06 46 0.1 - 47
Geographical information i EE R

The Group's operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas
(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The
Group carries out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong
Kong and other parts of Mainland China (the “PRC"). The Group also
operates marketing offices in Europe, the United States of America,
Latin America and other Asia Pacific countries.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BE—T—=F=A=+—HILFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of customers are detailed below:

DEER (@)

#thEE R (H)
$§EXE%ﬁEﬁZW§EE%Eﬁ%Em%
BT :

Revenue from
external customers

REIREF 2R G
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BEBEET

Americas EM 566.0 518.7

Europe XM 671.2 731.2

Asia Pacific G N 341.0 347.2

1,578.2 1,597.1

Non-current assets of the Group excluding deferred tax assets and BRECHBEEERSR T AN AEEZIERE

financial instruments are substantially located in the PRC including Hong BEBRBHUNFTE (BEEE) -

Kong.

Information about major customers FEEFER

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer AEEBEPEREMN TEE-—FXPEMES

contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years. EMAEERAERI0% °

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hfth Uy 25 &% 5 18

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BEBEET
Impairment losses recognised in respect of EEREMIAEZ
financial instruments (note a) WAEEE (f:Ea) (0.9) (7.3)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE MR RS
plant and equipment Wz 47.4 0.1

Gain on disposal of club membership HERESSHE 2 W 0.3 =

Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEEEE 2 W - 3.4

Net exchange losses (note b) & 5 B EFE (Mi5Eb) 4.7) (2.6)

421 (6.4)

Notes: B &

(a) Included in the impairment losses recognised in respect of financial instruments (a) PREEEEReMIAZRERFESR  BURIEX
are impairment losses on trade receivables of HK$0.9 million (2012: HK$1.6 ZREEERAEB0IBEE T (ZE——F 8K
million). 1.6B&IT) °

(b) Included in the net exchange losses are gain arising from changes in fair value

of forward contracts of HK$1.3 million (2012: gain of HK$3.3 million).

() EFEEELBRFET EHANQIABELY

MEEAZRSEEAEIZEET (ZTE—Z2F 1K
=BE33EET) °
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_T—=F=A=+—HAILFE

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. BREAIEE
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEHET B EE T
Loss before taxation has been arrived BRI AT ES I E R N7 I8 :

at after charging:

Directors’ emolument (note 8) E5Me (7E8) 8.5 7.0
Retirement benefits scheme contributions HAth 8 TR IKRBEFT IR

for other staff, net of forfeited HBRBE0.68 BT 2R It

contributions of HK$0.6 million (Z2—=F :B¥168E8T)

(2012: HK$1.6 million) 20.0 215
Share option benefits expenses for other staff B fh 8 T 7 BEAX AR 7 5 2 0.6 1.7
Salaries for other staff HMETZTHE 299.3 328.8
Other benefits for staff other than directors BRESI BT 2HMETR 17.6 12.1
Other staff costs Hh 8 TRA 337.5 364.1
Total staff costs B TR A 346.0 371.1
Less: Staff costs capitalised in product B BEERCEERATXNAZ

development costs 8 TR (12.1) (17.6)
Staff costs included in research and WARBMERAZERZ
development costs 8 TR (10.8) (22.6)
323.1 330.9
Amortisation of product development costs E o P B PR AN 2 B BR

(included in research and development costs) GIRMREEREER) 22.6 19.8
Amortisation of patents and trademarks B R IR 2 i 2.1 2.0
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN B & 43 4.6
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERERBRX 2 FERA (BE#RFE -

(including write down of inventories SHEABEI34EE L (22— =4

amounting to HK$13.4 million BEATEEIT) )

(2012: HK$4.7 million) 1,136.4 1,112.6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #% - #2E KR E 2T E

— held under finance leases — A BHELEE 1.2 1.3

— owned by the Group —AEEES 29.5 59.4
Operating lease rentals in respect of LERHHES

— office equipment and motor vehicles —WAERERAE 0.8 1.0

— rented premises —THEmE 40.2 39.6
and after crediting to other income: REFTAHAM AT :

Interest income FEWA 1.6 1.4
Sales of moulds and scraps SHE S B Rk 3.8 2.5
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 &

Et

=F=RA=t+—HILLEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEMe
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 (2012: 7) directors ERNREMNT6E (ZE—ZF :7TR)EEEAL
and the chief executive of the Company were as follows: MemT -
Basic Retirement
salaries benefits Share-
and scheme based
Fees allowances contributions payments Total
EXFe BIRRE NROAESE
e RoE8 BHE L3 PACE ot o]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERET BERET BERET BEEET BERET
Year ended March 31, 2013 BE-T-—=%
ZA=t+-HLEEFE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Dr. Raymond Chan PBRAE X8 L 0.1 3.4 0.2 0.1 3.8
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley RiSE L+ 0.1 1.6 0.1 0.1 1.9
Independent non-executive directors: ¥ FEHTTEFE -
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBKAE 0.3 - - 0.4 0.7
Mr. Kao Ying Lun = RS A 0.3 - - 0.4 0.7
Mr. Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmucklift & 0.4 - - 0.4 0.8
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae AR —1E L 0.2 - - 0.4 0.6
14 5.0 0.3 1.8 85
Year ended March 31, 2012 HE-Z——%
ZA=t-ALEE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Dr. Raymond Chan BREEX T+ 0.1 34 0.2 - 37
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley RES &+ 0.1 1.6 0.1 - 1.8
Mr. Barry John Buttifant (note) SN E () - = = = =
Independent non-executive directors: B EHTTEE
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony ERBESE 0.3 - - 0.1 0.4
Mr. Kao Ying Lun =R A 0.3 - - 0.1 0.4
Mr. Jack Schmuckli Jack SchmuckliZe 4 0.3 - - 0.1 0.4
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae AR —1E L 0.2 - - 0.1 03
1.3 5.0 0.3 0.4 7.0
Note: Resigned on June 30, 2011.
IDT International Limited & kBB AR A 7] 87
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—T—=F=A=1+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Dr. Raymond Chan is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors had waived any
emoluments during the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

9. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals included
two (2012: two) executive directors of the Company, one of them
is also the chief executive of the Company, whose emoluments are

BEEME (30

BREXELIMEREENITRAR A EMEE
MBS B B REE N ETRARME - R -

RZE—=FR-_FT——F=-A=+—HEH&K
WETHAR R ERNESEWERB S -

EEME
ARARERBHMEARTAE (ZF—=

FMB)RARRYTES HP—RAKAR
RATH AR 2B 55 £ XIS - =

included in note 8 above. The emoluments of the remaining three EEREFMALTZHME0T
highest paid individuals are as follows:
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET B BEET
Basic salaries and allowances BEAXF & RER 5.7 5.5
Bonus B4 0.3 0.6
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRRERT B 5K 0.1 0.1
6.1 6.2
Bonus is determined with reference to the individual performance FN - FEALTHRIEAANRIBFTE °
during the year.
The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid individuals are HfR=EZBaFMA T 2N FATIRE

within the following bands:

Number of employees

EEAH
2013 2012
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T = /8 #2,000,0007T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 752,500,001 7T £ 7 #3,000,0007T 1 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

88 IDT International Limited & & B AR A E
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 %Zi_gf —F=ZA=t+—HULFE

n\/-ﬁ

10. TAXATION 10. i1
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEERT BB EEBIT
The charge comprises: T B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENSH
— current year —REE (2.4) (3.8)
— overprovision in prior years — A FERERE 4.0 1.1
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hh FLARE R 2 B IE
— current year —REE (0.4) (0.6)
— underprovision in prior years —AFEEREETE (7.9) =
(6.7) (3.3)
Deferred taxation (note 16) EFEFRIA (FI5E16)
— current year —REE (6.4) (1.8)
(13.1) (5.1)
The charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as RNEZHRIA HEKRB A 2 BRERNOT
follows:
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEHEBET BB BB
Loss before taxation BR7 A& 18 (15.8) (25.3)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of BAMATSHR165% (ZF——F:
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 16.5% ) erZZﬁIE%E&ﬁ 2.6 4.2
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DA 2 RIE R &
for tax purposes (9.0) (3.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes HZE=R Fi Ut A 2 Tl TH % 12.2 4.3
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERE u«mmlﬁi\}%?@z%ﬁlﬁ ?é% (27.1) (17.6)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEEERLCEMER
operating in other jurisdictions FrER AR AR 2 & 6.0 2.7
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) A F A KRR 2 Fi 1B E 18 7.0 6.8
(Under)overprovision in prior years NAFEEREE (T R)HBE (3.9) 1.1
Others HAth (0.9) (3.6)
Tax charge for the year AFEEHEBEIH (13.1) (5.1)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of estimated assessable
profits for both years. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

BB
16.5% 2 EFH - EMREER 2B NIEE

IR & F 2 (5T B R Ba A I i

e AR 2 ERBEGH -

IDT International Limited &gk BB B R 2 &)
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_T—=F=A=+—HAILFE

10.

11.

90

TAXATION (continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.

In the current year, the underprovision of taxation in other jurisdiction
is mainly attributable to the settlement of taxation of an overseas
subsidiary upon the finalisation of prior years’ tax assessments with the
local tax authority on the deductibility of certain expenses items.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year is based on the following data:

10.

11.

BIE (#)

MR (hE ARLRMBEZAERE) ([

Eﬁiﬂ&%mmw ERRA R T BB
AT Z DEFFER B R A25% o

MNAFE  HprlAER 2 HBRERE TS EEAR
— RSN B A BT R B B S B R AR AT
BREFE A TG KRR B /A R
M MAZBENBIE-

BREE

REERRBHEE AFTESRERN N EREIET)
BT BURETE

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEEBET B EEBIT
Loss: &1
Loss for the year attributable to owners of RATHEBAFGEERANGTE
the Company and loss for the purposes of FRERREEEEIE CESE
basic and diluted loss per share (28.9) (30.4)
2013 2012
Number of ordinary shares: TRRMHEE :
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of i bAsH E G A E AN & #5514
basic and diluted loss per share B8 2 L m AR AR BN 2,502,271,088  2,502,271,088

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended March
31, 2013 and 2012 does not assume the exercise of the Company's
outstanding share options as the inclusion of those options would result
in decrease in loss per share for both years.

IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILtEE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. Y% HBERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and and Motor Plantand Construction
buildings equipment vehicles machinery  in progress Total
HELH B BRERE
kEF EBERRE AE )T 1 HRIR kel
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEREL ANEET  A%ABEr  AKEEr  A¥EEx  BBBEER
COST OR VALUATION BAERGE
At April 1, 2011 R-ZE——FNA—H 51.4 3293 7.1 304.5 0.1 692.4
Currency realignment I 5 % = 2.3) 0.1) = = (2.4)
Additions NE - 73 0.5 8.7 0.1 16.6
Transfer fi - 0.2 - = 0.2) =
Disposals HE - (3.3) (2.5) @.4) = (10.2)
At March 31, 2012 A—E——F=A=+—H 51.4 33 5.0 308.8 - 696.4
Currency realignment RIS - (1.9) (0.1) = = (2.0)
Additions NE - 8.3 - 10.8 0.3 19.4
Disposals HE (18.2) (11.4) (0.6) (4.6) - (34.8)
At March 31, 2013 R-ZE-—=F=A=+—H 332 326.2 43 315.0 0.3 679.0
Comprising: B
At cost REAE 12.0 326.2 43 315.0 03 657.8
At valuation B4E
-1993 ——hAN=F 13.1 = = = = 131
- 1994 ——ANEE 8.1 - - - - 8.1
332 326.2 43 315.0 03 679.0
DEPRECIATION bk
At April 1, 2011 R=—Z——%mA—A 25.4 2745 5.8 253.8 = 559.5
Currency realignment I 5 A% - (19 (0.1) = = (2.0)
Provided for the year AEEHER 04 282 0.7 314 - 60.7
Eliminated on disposals T B 3 - 32 2.4) 43) = (9.9)
At March 31, 2012 A_E——F=A=+—H 25.8 297.6 4.0 280.9 - 608.3
Currency realignment fE 5 A% - (1.6) 0.1 = = (1.5)
Provided for the year REEFR 0.4 18.4 02 1.7 = 307
Eliminated on disposals T B 3 (8.1) (113) (0.6) (3.7) = (23.7)
At March 31, 2013 R-ZE-—=6=A=+—H 18.1 303.1 3.7 2889 - 613.8
CARRYING VALUES REE
At March 31, 2013 R-E-—=F=A=+—H 15.1 231 0.6 26.1 0.3 65.2
At March 31, 2012 —#=Zf=1+—H 25.6 33.6 1.0 27.9 - 88.1
IDT International Limited BB R A F) 9 rl
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—T—=F=A=1+—HIFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term
the lease, or 25 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 25%

Motor vehicles 10% — 20%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at
each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

The carrying values of the Group's property interests comprise:

12. Y #HBRRE @

MR MREBEAERL R AFH
WE TSR B ERITE  UMERAR  §F 2
BT

HELREF FAE #2554 - AR
RERE

Hfh - KERRK 10% — 25%

qE 10% - 20%

R = 2% 1 R M 2 10% - 20%

{51 B BB 4 2 T B RN 4 SRR -
HEDZ YRRERIHRLEEAR.

AEBZYEERFERESE:
2013 2012

HK$'M HK$'M
BEEHET AEEET

Properties held under medium-term leases BRBEONRESEE
in Hong Kong 2WE

151 25.6

If the Group's land and buildings had not been revalued, the carrying
value of land and buildings would have been HK$5.5 million (2012:
HK$8.5 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of furniture,
fixtures and equipment held under finance leases was HK$2.3 million
(2012: HK$3.5 million).
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BE—T—=F=A=+—HILFEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BILERE
Product
development Patents and
costs trademarks Total
EmRARRAE HEAREE M
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERETT BEE R BT BEET BT
COST RAE
At April 1, 2011 R=ZF——FMA—H 426.8 9.6 436.4
Additions NE 30.5 6.4 36.9
Disposals HE (5.3) = (5.3)
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=ZA=+—H 452.0 16.0 468.0
Additions /%%E 214 0.8 2222
Disposals & (10.4) = (10.4)
Written off T34 (72.8) = (72.8)
At March 31, 2013 R-_E—=%F=ZA=+—H 390.2 16.8 407.0
AMORTISATION E
At April 1, 2011 R=—ZT——FMmMA—H 384.4 5.2 389.6
Amortised for the year NEFHEH 19.8 2.0 21.8
Eliminated on disposals & 2 H 88 (1.4) = (1.4)
At March 31, 2012 R-_E——F=A=+—H 402.8 7.2 410.0
Amortised for the year AN E 22.6 2.1 24.7
Eliminated on written off 85 < ¥ 85 (72.8) = (72.8)
At March 31, 2013 RZE—=%=RA=+—H 352.6 9.3 361.9
CARRYING VALUES REE
At March 31, 2013 R-_E—=F=ZA=+—H 37.6 7.5 451
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=FA=+—H 49.2 8.8 58.0

Note: At the end of the reporting period, the cost of intangible assets that were fully
amortised but still in use amounted to HK$325.1 million (2012: HK$381.5

million).

The above intangible assets, which have finite useful lives, are amortised
on a straight line basis over the following periods:

Product development cost
Patents and trademarks

2 years
5—10 years

MizE: EAREHEED B2 BBREENESTHZE
REAENKAABE3 1 5B (ZE——4F:
1381588 T)

AL EENT BFRER - TrR AT HfHE A
HAORHESE

EmAEKA 2%
BH R ER 5E10%F
IDT International Limited & kBB AR A 7] 93

Annual Report ()13 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

v/'ﬁ

For the

14.

94

BRI EE

year ended March 31, 2013 HE T —=F=A=+—HIFE

GOODWILL 14. BE
HK$'M
BB BEET
At April 1, 2011 R-—Z——&mA—H 34.1
Currency realignment ME 5 % (0.2)
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 33.9
Currency realignment E 5 AR (0.1)
At March 31, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 338

Due to the reorganisation of the Group’s reporting structure that
changed the composition of the relevant cash generating unit as set in
note 5, for the purpose of impairment review, the amount of goodwill
which was previously allocated to LCD consumer electronic products
unit was reallocated to Time and Weather consumer electronic product
unit (“CGU A"). The remaining amount of goodwill continued to be
allocated to Telecommunications consumer electronic product unit
("CGU B").

The carrying amount of goodwill as at March 31, 2013 allocated to
these units are as follows:

EAEE R 2 EHEMNE 7N 5 AT
I ARRIREM 2 e BT RERN 28
DEFBRBRAREFHEEMIAZRLEENR
EFOERIRERRREFHEEREN (T4
REMA]) BT 2EBESHEEBRSIRIEA
EFHEEMEBEN ([RIREMB]) -

HER _FT-—=F=A=+—BzzKEEIET
SZEBRZBERMT

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER AREEET

Time and weather consumer electronic REMRKREFHEEMEMN
products unit (2012: LCD consumer (ZE—ZF: RREET
electronic products unit) BT HEBEM) 17.5 17.6
Telecommunications consumer electronic EMETFHEERSN
products unit 16.3 16.3
33.8 33.9

During the year ended March 31, 2013, management of the Group
determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGUs containing
goodwill.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 #{Z—Z—=F=ZA=+—HIFE

GOODWILL (continued) 14. B2 #)
The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU B have been BIIR B AHL AR BBz AT U [El & R E R B (E
determined based on a value in use calculation. The calculation REBENEEMEE &t EER EAKEERE
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by EIREBHR 2 RE RARKREFEH EIEERRAIER
management for the next year and for the following four years based emETEA - BRE —IBEERE3I%  RRAF
on a steady growth rate of 3% per annum. Cash flows beyond the BrEeREANTEREE - EBENERR
five-year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate. Management ME -miZEm&R ARz ABREZKMMETRIERE
estimates discount rate of 10% and 8% for CGU A and CGU B AREIFREMNBZ G2 RED R R10% K&
respectively using a risk-free rate, the market return and CGU specific 8% UL Ty IRIE AR B R KRR TI5#8) 2 78
factors. The key assumptions are annual growth rates, estimated SN AMAIREN 2 FERE B RIE 2
future selling prices and direct costs which are estimated are based EBRREEZEXA -BREEMEGEMNNRER L2
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market. SR AIRE BN - HD & E K M B AR B 2 BR
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of HRELPEEREM 2T REIESHE-
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
both CGUs to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of respective
CGUs.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 15. AIHHERE
2013 & 2012
HK$'M
BEBEET
Unlisted equity securities at cost I ETRAFEH KA 0.9

The above unlisted investments represent a 2.92% (2012: 2.92%)
equity investments in a private entity that was established in Korea.
They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

NEFRLEMEREERBEKRIAATRZ
292% (ZE—ZF:2.92% ) BRAKRE - ZER
BEUARABERNBREREE R ZREFNE TIA
REFFEEAREBEZBERERURARRE
ERB/RNBEEXNFEHFE-
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year ended March 31, 2013 HE T —=F=A=+—HIFE

DEFERRED TAXATION 16. EFEBIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised Ti%%i?'JﬁA$$&iﬁﬁ MRBAREHEAEHERZ
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods: REFHIE (BE)BEERHLEE
Accelerated Product Unrealised
tax development  Revaluation Tax profits on
depreciation costs  of properties losses inventories Total
mE Em BEZ
HERE %S MEER HEEE AERERA B
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEEr  A%AEx AB¥EEn  #%EEx  A%AEx  BEEER
At April 1, 2011 —T——F@mA—H (0.6) (4.9) (5.6) 30.5 6.4 25.8
Currency realignment EI HE - - - (0.5) - (0.5)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss REFRETA (BR) B2
for the year 1.5 2.1) - 0.7) (0.5) (1.8)
At March 31, 2012 RZZ——#=A=+—H 0.9 (7.0) (5.6) 293 5.9 235
Currency realignment ExRE - - - (0.4) - (0.4)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss AEERNGA (1K) B
for the year (0.1) 1.1 - (7.7) 0.3 (6.4)
Credit to equity SRR - - 26 - - 26
At March 31, 2013 —=#=fA=1+—~H 0.8 (5.9) (3.0) 21.2 6.2 19.3
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial M mE 2 BEFIBERIITOT
reporting purposes:
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET B BEET
Deferred tax assets RERIEE = 19.6 26.4
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEBE (0.3) (2.9
19.3 23.5

By reference to financial budgets, management believes that there will
be sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences available in
the future for the realisation of the deferred tax assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses
of HK$838.5 million (2012: HK$779.5 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$128.5 million (2012: HK$177.6 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$710.0 million (2012: HK$601.9 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$31.6 million that will expire in the years of 2013 to 2016
(2012: HK$6.8 million expire in the years of 2012 to 2015). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 #{Z—Z—=F=ZA=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 7E
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEERT BEE BT
Raw materials =k 77.5 94.5
Work in progress ER 20.3 9.8
Finished goods BURK 180.1 149.2
277.9 2535

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice date which
approximate the respective revenue recognition date at the reporting
date.

FE UK BR R % EL Ath FE I R 1B

RIREAE BB RIERE  BREERIZHER
H(EYENREERASHES) 2V ZEED
MranT :

2013 2012

HK$'M HK$'M

BEHET BEEE BT

0 to 30 days 0HZ=30H 168.0 109.2
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 41.2 37.3
Over 90 days 90H A E 14.9 12.6
Trade receivables J& LB 53R 224.1 159.1
Other receivables H W Sk IE 73.5 56.6
Total trade and other receivables JIE U BR 3K I H th FE U GRIB 48 2R 297.6 215.7

The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 60 days to its trade
customers. Customers with long business relationship and strong
financial position are allowed to settle their balances beyond the normal
credit terms up to 90 days.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of a good credit quality based on the good payment
history of the related debtors from historical experience. Based on the
payment pattern of the customers of the Group, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally collectible. Included
in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$41.4 million (2012: HK$16.0 million) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors assessed that the balances will
be recovered based on their past settlement records. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 51.9 days (2012: 36.4 days).

REBGETESGREF ZEHH—MA308E60H
TE - HALEMBERAELBERYEGRRE
BzBFRIAHEEEEHNERENEEREE
HiZ90H ©

AEBEERERYERBERERZEEERZ I
RAEBBBACEEREBAZ RITERGDE
bt R A 6 B B KRR (E 2 R BR KB R iF (5
BEZ - RBEASEZFZMAZER  E@HAE
ROBAE 2 FEW BRI — MR T = A LAMR[E] o 5 AR S
ErRREREHAREEERE A MASLE
WESHRREEERE 2 BRRZEEmES LB
A AaE T (ZE——F 8816088 7T) °
BEBEATWSRLE EFT 2@ 2 EK
IRRAERAI AR E - AEBEW ERZEEBTR
R - Z R BR R 2 R A51.98 (=
T—_"4%:364H)
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE T —=F=A=+—HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

P W Bl ok 2 Lt P LKL ()
B AR R 2 MR 2 Bt

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEHET AEEET

Overdue less than 30 days # BI30H K 20.1 5.9
Overdue 31 to 90 days B HI31 3 £90H 11.7 2.6
Overdue more than 90 days BHEI90RA M E 9.6 7.5

41.4 16.0

The Group estimates the future discount cash flow of trade receivables
and provided fully for those receivables considered not recoverable
because based on historical experiences such receivables are generally
not recoverable, except for some major customers with longer credit
terms at the discretion of senior management.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables:

REEMETEBEROARRRSTEE W

HRATAWEREWREFIEL2HEE AR

BEATER RTaMERAEMNER T L

Iz%fifﬁﬁ'ﬂi KERSN - ZEFEUGRIEE A £
TredrfE e

R R R 28
2013 2012

HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEETT

Balance at beginning of the year FHRER 23.9 223
Impairment losses recognised in respect of EHERIE W AR R 2 REEE

trade receivables 0.9 1.6
Amount written off as uncollectible i EE T AT Uk B 2 KRR (2.4) =
Balance at end of the year FIREERR 22.4 23.9

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue more than 90 days
and/or have no material transactions with the Group during the year.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 BE—T—=F=A=+—HILFEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEW AR I H 2 FE W TE (a0
Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts JE BB R e E At FE MR IB B4R TSI AR SR B &
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the BrDREE AN B, EEZ KA

group entities to which they relate:

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEETT

usD eV 97.7 63.7
Renminbi AR 2.3 0.1
Euro A 72 0.8 0.9
GBP L 1.3 -
102.1 64.7
HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENT 19. HEEERE
As at March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group has an investment in equity RZE—=F=A=+—HER=ZZT—=F=FH
securities listed in Hong Kong which has been fully impaired. =+—B AKEFE-BHEAS LT 2 RAE
H/E WEERBURE -
Subsequent to the suspension of trading of the listed entity’s securities RIT——FZLEMERBNILFFRE EFR
in 2011, the directors considered that the fair value of the listed BEZASHEZ MBS 2 AAEBE BAE
securities cannot be measured reliably because it was not apparent in AABERERMSBTRER Bt AEER
the active market. As a result, the Group had set the quoted price of the LEMEHENFER 2 RERKA  WIEKAR L
listed securities at the date of suspension as the deemed cost and had EHEHBZREEEFEZERE -

measured the investment at cost less identified impairment losses.

As at March 31, 2012, the listed securities was still under suspension E-_T——F=ZA=+—8 ZLEWEBEDERE
and the resumption conditions have not been satisfied. Accordingly, the R RADAR MR TR BT Bt EEE I
directors assessed impairment and recognised an impairment loss of EHRERNTESREZE T ——F=A=1+—H
HK$5.7 million during the year ended March 31, 2012. ILFEERERT BB 768 L2 MEEIS -
On March 26, 2013, the listed entity made an announcement that RZTE—=F=A=-+ A ZLmEEEX=
should all the resumption conditions stated are fulfilled after the T—_HF+_A=+—HZ2FEEER EME
publication of the annual results for the year ended December 31, RFEMAERGE  WEBAREZ EMRAES
2012, trading in the listed equity securities was expected to be AR5 e
resumed.
As at March 31,2013, the trading of the listed securities, was still E-_Z—=F=A=1t—H ZLTRHZRS
suspended and the directors considered that the fair value of the listed MHER REFZERZ LTEFIDAEL
securities could not be reliably measured and the investment continued TR r] SEtthaT = « FT AR IR & 4 48 DA R AN &0
to be measured at cost less identified impairment loss. BEEBETFE-
On April 2, 2013, the listed equity securities resumed trading and the RZZE—=FMAZH ZETERAEHRER
Group sold out all such listed equity securities and recorded a disposal S AEBEEMAEZ EMRAE S  WEEH
proceed of HK$14.0 million credited to profit or loss. BB E14.08E T ARERRF -
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_ZT—=F=A=1+—HIFE

20. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits bear an average effective interest rate of
2.50% per annum (2012: 1.65% per annum) have an original maturity
of six months (2012: six months) and are denominated in Renminbi
(2012: Renminbi).

Bank balances and cash which comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less are at prevailing market interest rates in the range of 0.01% to
3.05% (2012: 0.1% to 1.65%) per annum.

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash
are the following amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

20.

BEHRTERER RITEREE
RBRTEBERDNZREEERFEF X250
HE(ZE——F:1658) URANEA (-
——F:NEARA)HHEUARK (ZE——F:
ARE)EHE -

IRITEBEBESPREASEFE 2 ¢ MR
TER BBRGERZRIHAAE=@AIUT
BTSSR R B - FF RN T0.01EZE3.05
B(ZZ——%:01EZ165E) -

RHRTEMERMRTERLRSBIE T
HESEERB I EE NI 2B EZR
15 :

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET AEEET

usD = 53.4 150.1
Renminbi AR 69.9 54.1
Euro B 78 41.3 18.4
GBP 7 8.9 0.1
173.5 222.7
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 B E =T —=F=A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. ENERAREMESKERTERE
]

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on RBEHEAE R ENRFIREZABEY 2
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BRI DTN T

2013 2012

HK$'M HK$'M

AEEET BEBEET

0 to 30 days 0HZ=30H 54.3 33.9
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 43.3 48.7
Over 90 days 90H A E 10.0 18.8
Trade payables FETBRFR 107.6 101.4
Other payables and accruals HiERNRIERERER 141.5 138.5
Trade and other payables and accruals AT BR R e H At S BR SR %

TRRERERE 249.1 239.9
The amount of other payables mainly represented receipt in advance Hit AN RIAEERRREFPRIAEKI3 B E
from customers of HK$43.5 million (2012: HK$44.3 million), accrued T (ZE——F F844388T) FERERS
expenses of HK$40.1 million (2012: HK$37.2 million) and provision for BANBEET(ZE——F 837288 T) &
staff cost of HK$31.0 million (2012: HK$35.6 million). BTRABEBEIABEL(ZE——F:8

356 7T) °

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts FERTBR AR R H A BT R IBRIE TSI AEAERE
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the B RN BEEHE 2 FIR

group entities to which they relate:

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER AREEET

usD ey 46.7 324
Renminbi AR 18.2 37.6
Euro 213 0.9 0.3
65.8 70.3
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—_ZT—=F=A=1+—HIFE

22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group lease certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment under
finance leases. The lease term ranges from 2 to 3 years. Interest rates
underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective
contract dates and range from 3% to 5%. These leases have no terms
of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses. No arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

MBENER
AREUMEEOEEETRA RERRRE-
BN F223% - Fi 8 WAL B 2 1A =
PREMTHRBITE AIEEERE - HWA
T RERGHR TEREEEERARAS
2 R S B R AT BT SLAE AR B -

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEBEALH EEANARZRE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BYEEET BERET BYEEERT BERET
Amount payable under finance leases: IRBR SR K2 88 -
Within one year —F2ZR 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5
Between one to two years —FERF M 0.1 06 0.1 0.5
Between two to three years MEE=F 2 - 0.1 - 0.1
0.7 1.2 0.6 1.1
Less: Future finance charges e ARRIBEER (0.1) 0.1) - =
Present value of lease obligations MOEE2RE 0.6 1.1 0.6 1.1
Less: Amount due within one year shown  Jil : BR—EREEMIIA
under current liabilities mEBEEZHE (0.5) (0.5)
Amount due after one year ARBR—FREEZERE 0.1 06

The fair value of the Group’s finance lease obligations determined
based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting
period approximates to their carrying amount.

1 O 2 IDT International Limited & &R AR A F
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILEE

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEBEET
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHHNES X
— Derivative financial assets —TEEMEE 0.3 0.2

In the current year, the Group has used currency derivatives to hedge
significant future transactions and cash flows. The Group is a party to a
variety of foreign currency forward contracts in the management of its
foreign exchange rate exposures. The instruments entered are primarily
denominated in the currencies of the Group's principal markets.

The ranges of the total nominal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts to which the Group is committed at the end
of the reporting periods are as follows:

RAFE AEBUEEITETARAEEY
ARRZGRIRERBETE P - AEBEILT
[l 2 R HASMNE & &9 DAE 2 E R @ fg - TR A 2
TAFEUAREEEZEMSEMNEREE-

AAEER] S MR 8 2 = EINES DR R
LHSER 2 AEEBESENSENT -

At March 31, 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—H

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
HESHE FHH fE =

Sell EURO500,000 July 19, 2013 USD/EURO1.3422

i 1500,0000! 78

Sell EURO500,000
Y H1500,0008 Z&

At March 31, 2012

Notional amount

HEEH

—T—=F+At+hH

December 17,2013
—ET—=F+-A++tH

R=®-=—€£=A=1-H

Maturity
FH B

o0,/ BUE1.3422

USD/EURO1.3070
%,/ BZ#1.3070

Exchange rates

fE =

Sell EURO500,000
& 1500,0000! 28

Buy RMB6,365,000/
RMB6,420,000

2 \6,365,000A R~

6,420,000 A R #&

Range from April 17, 2012 to
February 27, 2013

T _FOEOA+LERE
TE-ZF A+t HHA

April 30, 2012 and June 13, 2012
“E-ZHFMOA=THR
—E-FRXAT+=AR

The above foreign exchange contracts will be settled in net amount on

maturity date.

USD/EURO 1.3352
%71,/ B7#1.3352

USD/RMB6.30020
7t/ ANR#6.30020

A ESMNERKIR BB AR IAFRES -
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE—ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE

23. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 23.

At March 31, 2013, the fair value of the Group’s currency derivatives
is estimated to be forward contract assets of HK$0.3 million (2012:

forward contract assets of HK$0.2 million).

During the year, gain arising from changes in the fair value of the
Group's currency derivatives amounting to HK$1.3 million (2012: gain
arising from changes in the fair value of the Group'’s currency derivatives

1,

Rl
&

é.ﬂﬁ? (%)

—=F=A=+—B AEEZEHHE
BEMAWAEZ B AR MEARBK03
(== EBANEERER0.2E

fm H %
Sl 38w |
jﬁmmw

FR AEBEETETACAEBEEZYRER
AEI3EET(ZE—= i EHEHNZRRE
EEPEENRER/EEIIFAET) ENER

amounting to HK$3.3 million) have been recognised in profit or loss. R
24. BANK LOANS 24. SRITEX
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BB BB
Bank loans RITER 261.3 192.0
Bank overdrafts RITEX 0.6 =
261.9 192.0
The bank loans are repayable as follows*: AEEZ RIS
Within one year —F2ZR 238.6 65.3
More than one year but not exceeding ZR—FETHBBME
two years 11.3 13.4
More than two years but not exceeding ZAMEETHEBRT
five years 12.0 113.3
261.9 192.0
Comprising: B
Amount due within one year and BAR—FRNEERFEIR
containing a repayment on demand ERER GRS RRE
clause shown under current liabilities E{iﬁ’]igﬁ 238.6 65.3
Amount that are not repayable within EARNREAHEE BT
one year from the end of the reporting —FREEREHAAIRER
period but containing a repayment on BRIGER G RREHBE)R
demand clause (shown under current |
liabilities) 23.3 36.7
Total amount shown under current liabilities JRRBAREE 261.9 102.0
Amount shown under non-current liabilities P AEIERE A E 2 KA - 90.0
261.9 192.0

* These amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILtFEE

BANK LOANS (continued) 24,

The bank loans and bank overdrafts are unsecured and denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. They carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 1.38% to 2.5% or prime rate plus 1% to 4.5% (2012:
HIBOR plus 1.38% to 2.75%) per annum. The fair value of the bank
loans approximates the corresponding carrying amount.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the bank loans ranged from 1.73% to 4.98% (2012: 1.40%
to 3.82%) per annum as at March 31, 2013. The bank overdrafts
carried interest rate at 2.229% (2012: nil) per annum as at March 31,
2013.

IRITE R (@)
ZERTERKIBRTE S BERKIE ROEEET
B mEEEREEERE 2 NEEE Mk
ERRITRIZEFRBE N IBER2 SEHZERFE
MEZ4SE (ZZE——F - BERTAERE
IN1.38EZE2.75/F ) 2 FFEF B - SRITERZA
AEEEEEZE@ERS -

RZE—=F=A=+—8 ZSRTERZE
BRAE (EERFTNRNE)NFFERI1T3EE
498E (T ——F:140BE382E) RN _Z
—=F=RA=+—H8 ROTBEXIK2229E (=%
——F \E)ZFNEFE

SHARE CAPITAL 25. g7
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE &8
HK$'M
B BB
Authorised: ETERA
At April 1, 2011, March 31, 2012 and RZE——FWmA—AH"
March 31, 2013 —ET——F=A=+—HK
—E—=F=HA=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —EFREEREE0 10Tz EBRG 3,500,000,000 350.0
— ordinary shares of US$0.10 each — SR EE0.10E T 2 @Ak » 10,000 =
Issued and fully paid: BT REBRA
At April 1, 2011, March 31, 2012 and RZZE——FMA—R"
March 31, 2013 —E——#=A=+—-HRF
—ZE—=%=A=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —SREESE. 10T 2 EBRD 2,502,271,088 250.2

No dividend was paid or proposed for both of the years, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

NREEE  BERNREZRERERE RS
HEEAEL BEZRMKS -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group offers share options to attract, motivate and retain key
employees who contribute to the growth of the Group. At the special
general meeting held on August 28, 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (“2002 IDT International Option Scheme”).

The terms of the option scheme is described below:

2002 IDT International Option Scheme

The 2002 IDT International Option Scheme was adopted on August 28,
2002 and will continue in operation for a maximum of ten years from
such date.

Pursuant to this scheme, the board of directors of the Company
offered to grant options to selected eligible participants, including full-
time employees and full-time executive directors of the Company or
employees of any of its subsidiaries.

At March 31, 2013, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under this scheme was
110,645,000 (2012: 114,550,000), representing 4.4% (2012: 4.6%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The limit on the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2002 IDT International Option Scheme, together with all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 30% of the
number of the Company’s issued shares from time to time. Subject
always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share option
scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 207,179,540 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
August 28, 2002, the adoption date of the 2002 IDT International
Option Scheme. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or exceeded if
approved by shareholders in general meeting subject always to the
aforesaid overall 30% limit.
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For the year ended March 31,2013 HE—_T—=F=A=+—HAILLFE

B
7R B AR ﬂ@& BHAREN
RELEBZEBEE -ARARZBE-FN

ﬁi+ﬂa%ﬁ2%ﬁ%%ﬁgihm%h%ﬁ
8 ((—2T-FERRARRBERTE) -

F IR AR 81 2 kst an T

—EE_FERBIMREBRESTS
T FERREBRESEN_TT_FN
B+ \BERSG LTERZBRESENER
EE

RIFULE S RAREE G A A& EZ/\QT
HERSRTRBEE UF2EEAUSAR
Z%%f@%i&%ﬂ%iﬂﬁ%%’EEE{JHEJWE’AE
ZEE-

RZZE—=F=ZHA=+—H REBELFAZER
EmMDRTECERERIRZBRNDEE &
110,645,0000% ( == — — 4 : 114,550,0000% ) -
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Frilt 2 8830% MR BRI T - AITEAAERE L2
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For the year ended March 31, 2013 E—T—=F=A=+—HILEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted to a participant in any
12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date of such
grant. If the grant of options is offered to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, the total number of the Company’s shares
issued and which may be issued to such participant upon exercise of all
options granted in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the number of shares then in issue and
having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted under the 2002 IDT
International Option Scheme shall be the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercisable period.

An offer for grant of an option under the 2002 IDT International Option
Scheme must be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and
HK$1 is payable as consideration on acceptance. An option shall be
exercisable during the period as determined by the board of directors
of the Company or its authorised committee, which shall commence on
a date after the expiry of a 6-month period after the date of grant and
not exceed 10 years from the date of such grant.

26.

BRETE (m)
—EE_FERBIMRBRESTSE (8
REEE T BB E M+ — 88 8 BT
FEM—R2EE L FAABREAETRAER
T2 ARRIR @8 TERBE L ERES S
ZEEATRHEEZ1% - MERARRZ EER
RRBUFNTEEARE S A 2 FABEAL
ERETERE AREBEBREBH (8EZAR)
HER+ AR BIEER T2 REER
HEFTBAT R BT T X R L BE X AN TRN
B TREBERERTROKE01% A&
BTN SR8 ¥5,000,0007T °

RE_ZTT fiﬁjfilﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂgﬁi Bz B
EZRBEMEER N& MOESNGIE§7DiN
B BBz Wi fE (H)Hx{’n\ﬁf\‘%if%ﬁﬂj HEIR A
A% A 2 FHWHE : R ZEE-

BREZFEHRRLAHRGE BEE
FR A LE ©

1T HAE

RE_ZT_EEHRBERBREFIZENRKZ
BREVANREN R REFT28H AR WA
RNERES BB 1ITERRE - BRETRAR
AEEEARERBZ R EMEBEE2HRMAT
VATTfE - BN 3% th A 34 75 M A BfE e m & B 5
% B B AR T FARER -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT International

26. FERRESTE (@

— == —

— ==
—E=EET -

FEREIPRERET B (20
—FERERBIE T 2 BN

Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2013 and the EE—=F=-"A=1+—HULEFEZEHERIR
balances at March 31, 2013 are set out below: RIBE-—=ZF=A=1+—"HZHEHZKRDOT:
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/ Fair value
Exercise  Outstanding Granted forfeited  Outstanding at date
price at during during at of grant
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 4.1.2012 the year the year 3.31.2013  per option
R=B-ZF RZZ-Z% REHAH
mA-H R =ZA=1-AH BR2
S8% BB s BRITHE R EREE  AR/EH R AT DMER
(MDN) (M/DN) HK$ HKS
(B/B/%) (B/B/%) et BT
Directors 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 9,360,000 - - 9,360,000
i 12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
Employees 11.28.2005 11.29.2006 - 11.28.2015 0.548 312,000 - - 312,000
E8 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,470,000 - 390,000 2,080,000
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,158,000 - 390,000 1,768,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2009 - 8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - 1,250,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2010-8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 -
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 - 3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2013 - 3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 14,750,000 - 625,000 14,125,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 14,750,000 - 1,250,000 13,500,000
7.7.201 7.7.2013-7.6.2021 0.184 500,000 - 500,000 -
7.7.201 7.7.2014-7.6.2021 0.184 500,000 - 500,000 -
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 17,125,000 - 1,125,000 16,000,000
12.12.201 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 17,125,000 - 1,125,000 16,000,000
4.18.2012 4.18.2014 - 4.17.2022 0.136 - 3,250,000 1,000,000 2,250,000 0.0435
4.18.2012 4.18.2015 - 4.17.2022 0.136 - 3,250,000 1,000,000 2,250,000 0.0541
114,550,000 6,500,000 10,405,000 110,645,000
Exercisable at the end of
the year
REEHATE 39,050,000 42,645,000
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.201 HK$0.136 HK$0.223 HK$0.110
METFHTEE BB0200T  AM0136m  EH0223m  EH0.N0T

No share option was exercised during the year.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. FERRRESTE (@)
2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued) = gg —FEHERERESTS (5
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT International =TI fié'%lﬁlﬁ%‘\ﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁi‘szﬁﬁﬂx%EAEﬁ
Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2012 and the EE——F=A=1+—HLEFEZEHERIR
balances at March 31, 2012 are set out below: RIBE-——F=A=1+—"HZHEHZKRDOT:
Number of share options
BREZA
Lapsed/ Fair value
Exercise  Outstanding Granted forfeited  Outstanding at date
price at during during at of grant
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 4.1.2011 the year the year 3312012 per option
RZB-—-F RZZ-ZF REHAH
mA-H R =ZA=1-H Bz
S8% REAH TEHE BROEE EEi(d EREE  AR/EH i R AT AAER
(MDN) (M/DN) HK$ HK$
(B/B/%) (B/B/%) BT BET
Directors 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0529 9,360,000 = - 9,360,000
EE 1212010 12.12012 - 11302020 022 6,000,000 = - 6000000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0222 6000000 - - 6000000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0038
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0.046
Employees 11.28.2005 11.29.2006 - 11.28.2015 0548 312,000 - - 312,000
E8 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,548,000 - 78,000 2,470,000
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,236,000 - 78,000 2,158,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2009 - 8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2010-8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
1.21.2010 1.21.2012 - 1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 = 1,500,000 =
1.21.2010 1.21.2013 - 1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
3.24.2010 3.24.2012-3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2013 - 3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
8.24.2010 8.24.2012 - 8.23.2020 0.205 250,000 - 250,000 -
8.24.2010 8.24.2013 - 8.23.2020 0.205 250,000 - 250,000 -
12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 20,500,000 - 5,750,000 14,750,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 20,500,000 - 5,750,000 14,750,000
7.7.2011 7.7.2013 -7.6.2021 0.184 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.064
7.7.2011 7.7.2014-7.6.2021 0.184 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.080
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 12.11.2021 0.104 - 19,500,000 2,375,000 17,125,000 0.038
12.12.2011 12.12.2014 - 12.11.2021 0.104 - 19,500,000 2,375,000 17,125,000 0.046
76,456,000 58,000,000 19,906,000 114,550,000
Exercisable at the end of
the year
REEBATE 16,956,000 39,050,000
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.289 HK$0.105 HK$0.207 HK$0.201
MEFHTEE #0289 BH0105T  BH0207T  BH0.201T
No share option was exercised during the year. E A R AR T
IDT International Limited &gk BB B R 2 &
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26.

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The Company has used the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the
“Model”) to value the share options granted during the year. The Model
is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of the
option. The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so adopted may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Details of the fair values of share options determined at the date of

BRESTE (m)
—EE_FERBIMRBRESTE (5
AATERARHYETEER ([ZER])Y
FEREL T BREETHE RSP —T8
HRAMMEA D EEEEER g BEIUL
REFIBBRNSERY - FRHAZEHNE
#E - AHEARBES HETEEZIBAY
45 o

AR B SRR S 2 A e (B M0
B ARFRBAHERNT

grant using the Model with the inputs are as follows:

2013

—E-=F

Share options granted on April 18, 2012

HE-B-——_FNATNBRHZERE

Share price at grant date EREBZEE HK$0.128 75#0.128 T
Exercise price IfEE HK$0.136 7B #0.136 T
Expected volatility TEER 1R 53.426% - 57.602%  53.426% %57.602%
Expected life AN 3 -4 years 3245
Risk-free rate o B A = 0.329% - 0.417% 0.329%%0.417%
Expected dividend yield TAHR B X 0% 0%
2012 —T—_F

Share options granted on July 7, 2011 E-T——F+tAtARHZBRE

Share price at grant date EREAZRE HK$0.177 BHE0177TT
Exercise price IfE(E HK$0.184 BH0.1847T
Expected volatility TEHRR I8 55.44% — 60.03% 55.44%7%60.03%
Expected life TRERA A 3 - 4 years 3E4EF
Risk-free rate 42 3 B ) 3 0.65% — 1.04% 0.65%%1.04%
Expected dividend yield TEEARR B K 0% 0%
Share options granted on December 12,2011 A =-T——F+-A+-ARH 2 BRE

Share price at grant date EREAZRE HK$0.104 BH0.1047T
Exercise price IfE(E HK$0.104 BH0.1047T
Expected volatility T8 HRR 08 53.55% —57.17% 53.55%%57.17%
Expected life TEHEN G S 3 — 4 years 3E4EF
Risk-free rate 42 3B i) 3 0.43% - 0.62% 0.43%%0.62%
Expected dividend yield B B 0% 0%

IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company's share price over the previous 3 to 4 years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management'’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The 2002 IDT International Option Scheme expired on August 27,
2012. Options granted under the 2002 IDT International Option
Scheme prior to such expiration will continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the 2002 IDT International Option
Scheme.

At the annual general meeting held on August 29, 2012, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (“2012 IDT International Option
Scheme”). The terms of the new option scheme is described below:

2012 IDT International Option Scheme

The 2012 IDT International Option Scheme was adopted on August 29,
2012 and will continue in operation for a maximum of ten years from
such date.

Pursuant to this scheme, the board of directors of the Company
offered to grant options to selected eligible participants, including full-
time employees and full-time executive directors of the Company or
employees of any of its subsidiaries.

At March 31, 2013, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the 2012 IDT
International Option Scheme was 10,250,000 (2012: nil), representing
0.4% (2012: nil) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The limit on the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2012 IDT International Option Scheme, together with all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 30% of the
number of the Company's issued shares from time to time. Subject
always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share option
scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 250,227,108 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at August 29, 2012, the adoption date of the 2012 IDT
International Option Scheme. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or
exceeded if approved by shareholders in general meeting subject always
to the aforesaid overall 30% limit.

26.

BRETE (m)
—EE_FERBIMRBRESTSE (8
AR IE AR R RARERBESENEHES
RIBTRE e b 8 MR A BB RS
19 [ Bt B AR M R AT A 5 B - (T B PR B R 7T B
EEEERMIEENREGT TURE.

—EE_FERERBEEFIR T ——FN\
P ol & D 2 R A b e *E%quqfﬁ
B B R AT B 2 B R AR B
HREBE-TT — F RS B R T AATE

RZZ-——F N \A-thB ARAERRESF
REERAFTERESS ([T —FEBHEEK
BROEE ) - B AT 8] 2 BRI T

—E-—FERBIMRBRESTS

T —FERREBRESEN T ——FN
A+ NBERS TERAZBEERENER
E+Eo

RIBULETE RARNEEGAIMEE LA EKRS
HEREXTHEEE HERERZEAEBER
AAZEREEBMERATES  KEEMHE
RAEZEE -

RZTE—=F=A=+—H RE-T—=F8
JEk B B B AR A 5t B B IR I AN AR 1T 2 BB AR P
W ZBMHE B A10,250,0000% (— T — —4:
) HERARRIRE R 2B BTG E0.4%
(ZF—=F:8],)-

BRE T —_FERBREREGTEREERR
T2 B AR HE - AN _ERIB AR B E ] H ith
AR ME ST B3 B M AR AT 2 P S AR 1T AT A2 3%
TZROBRE  ZZ T FEALARABIER 2B %
TP E 230% ° FERF ZISZ | SCFTilt 22 8830%
FREERFI T BITEAAESRE 2 EBRE UK
*ETFZK“ﬂE@%H%fé%ﬂr%ﬂH%B%tljz}ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg

BEERIT 2 RID 4R8N - T15i838250,227,108%
Hﬂﬁ HARABR=ZFT—Z—_F/ \A=+NA (A
T BRBRBRESEZERABEE) 2
EBITIRAL10% © WM RN AR R XS H#E -
521O%KEEE“J%E%ﬁ&‘fﬁtﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁmﬁ%%

MERF R ESCPTi EE BB 30% PR FER il
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26.

112

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2012 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted to a participant in any
12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date of such
grant. If the grant of options is offered to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, the total number of the Company’s shares
issued and which may be issued to such participant upon exercise of all
options granted in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the number of shares then in issue and
having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted under the 2012 IDT
International Option Scheme shall be the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercisable period.

An offer for grant of an option under the 2012 IDT International Option
Scheme must be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and
HK$1 is payable as consideration on acceptance. An option shall be
exercisable during the period as determined by the board of directors
of the Company or its authorised committee, which shall commence on
a date after the expiry of a 6-month period after the date of grant and
not exceed 10 years from the date of such grant.

IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
Annual Report ()13 4
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BRESTE (m)
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2012 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)
The movements of share options under the 2012 IDT International

Option Scheme during the year ended March 31,

2013 and the

l‘/-ﬁ

26. FERRRESTE (@)
—E-—HFEREBRBRESE (8
T —EEHFRERETEIT 2 BN
BE_T-=-F=-A=t+—BUHEFEZEHE

balances at March 31, 2013 are set out below: MERZE—=F=A=+—H 2B &HRD
T
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/ Fair value
Exercise  Outstanding Granted forfeited  Outstanding at date
price at during during at of grant
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 4.1.2012 the year the year 3312013  per option
R=B-ZF RZZ-Z§ REHAH
mA-H R ZA=1-H Bk
28% BHAH il BRITHE BN EREL AN/HE iR AT REE
(MDN) (MDN) HKS HKS
(R/B/5) (A/B/%) BT BT
Employees 1232012 12.3.2013 - 12.2.2022 0.131 - 3,875,000 - 3,875,000 0.0405
135} 1232012 12.3.2014 - 12.2.2022 0.131 = 3,875,000 - 3,875,000 0.0497
3.27.2013 3.27.2014-3.26.2023 0.130 - 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 0.0418
3.27.2013 9.27.2014-3.26.2023 0.130 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.0418
3.27.2013 3.27.2015-3.26.2023 0.130 - 750,000 - 750,000 0.0510
- 10,250,000 - 10,250,000
Exercisable at the end of
the year
REERATHR - 3,875,000
Weighted average
exercise price
MEFHTEE - HK$0.130 - HK$0.130
No share option was exercised during the year. RE AR AT

The Company has used the Model to value the share options granted
during the year. The Model is one of the commonly used models to
estimate the fair value of the option. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in the
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair

value of an option.

ARRERAZRAHFAR L 2 BREET
fME-ZRASEP - BERNHEALEE
ﬁgﬁT ES@%ZFEHM&EA%JFI&M?“

ﬁfETEZ%ﬁTéﬁé\.*‘EUEK@& g
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26.

2012 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)
Details of the fair values of share options determined at the date of
grant using the Model with the inputs are as follows:

2013 —E-=F

BRERTE @)
—E-—FERERBRESTS (8
A ER T BRER SN B A AEED
S ARFBARERINT :

Share options granted on December 3,2012 E=—F——§+_-A=HRH 2 BRE

Share price at grant date EREBZEE
Exercise price 11 (E

Expected volatility TEHER 1R
Expected life TEER G IR
Risk-free rate o B A 2
Expected dividend yield BEIMR B &

Share options granted on March 27,2013 #=-T— == -+t HAFH 2 BRE

Share price at grant date EREBZEE
Exercise price (B

Expected volatility TEER 1R
Expected life TEHEAE A
Risk-free rate o e A 2
Expected dividend yield TREIRR B &

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company'’s share price over the previous 3 to 4 years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management'’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$2.4 million for the year
ended March 31, 2013 (2012: HK$2.1 million) in relation to share
options granted by the Company under the 2002 IDT International
Option Scheme and 2012 IDT International Option Scheme.

1 1 4 IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
Annual Report ()13 4

HK$0.124 7B#0.124T

HK$0.130 7B #0.130T

50.892% - 54.237%  50.892% £54.237%
3 -4 years 3Z4%

0.160% - 0.222% 0.160% £0.222%
0% 0%

HK$0.130 75#0.130T

HK$0.130 7B #0.130T

47.469% - 50.609%  47.469% Z50.609%
3 -4 years 3Z4%

0.239% - 0.398% 0.239%£0.398%
0% 0%

FEERIR T AR R RIRENBE=EMOFNE
SERIETORE < tEEA P ERNRAERHASD
RERERBRRETERNER  TTER S
RiTREBARMEHNOKEMG TAFE-

HE_Z—=FZ-A=1t—H1 A&EEEH
AARBEBE-ST-_FEREEERETE R
ZE—FEHEBRBRETIELNER
EMERNERY BB 2458 T (22 —=
FBE21BETT)
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group
considers the cost of capital and the risks associates with the capital,

27. EXERER
AEEYEAEES EREAEENY RS
B FERE RSB BEICESERRAEE A
PE R ER KR R [B1 3R o A5 B 7 KBS BB 1 F E 47
BB

AEBZ EAREREBERTERRARAEES A
fE(hiEs (B2 ERITRARRERE) -

AEBEREEHEREAGEB FRZBER L
—HD ARBEERBEREAZKARERZ
B TERIEZEEEHEAEBZEARR

and takes appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. 1o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. M IT A
Categories of financial instruments eI AEER
3.31.2013 3.31.2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEHET B EEBIT
Financial assets CREE
Loans and receivables B K& EW IR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (PRESIERBLER) 558.2 497.0
Derivative financial assets ESREE 0.3 0.2
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EemEE 0.9 0.9
559.4 498.1
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost BIHB R AR 388.8 338.5

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, available-for-sale investments, short-term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, forward contract
assets, bank overdraft and bank loans. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below.

MEERERERBEREE
AEEZTESHT ABERURN R A MR
IR A ERE  EHRITESRFR  RITE
BERE BNERRREMEMNFIE EHEH
BE ROBXEMRTEF -ZELBMTAFE
MNEBEMERE TXHINEZEEHRTAE
B 2 [ B2 n o] B K 5% 55 LB 2 SR o
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s daily
operations. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

28.

EBT A )
BEEEEEEERBER (#)

CRTASASERTSLENER -ERETHE
REEFRZFR G - LAREGR KB A RO REUE &
Mg AREMENZHZEAR UREER
BERRZ AW EELS) -

Market risk 5 Rk
Currency risk B b

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
also entered into foreign exchange forward contracts during the year.

The management monitors foreign currency exposures and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities including bank balances and
cash, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

AREEE THEQRETANEENEE - A
HASBAAZINER R A REEFAIRG]
ETHEEHEH-

EEESEFIIERRLE AT ERGEBLH
BERINE [ o

REBEDINEEECEBEERERBEBER
THRHBEIRS BRI H b U IR - A K
A BR AR N B A ST RROE - R B 2 BRTEIE 4N
T

Liabilities Assets
=L BE

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEHERT A¥EET BYEERT AEEET
usD X 46.7 324 151.1 213.8
Renminbi AR 18.2 37.6 72.2 54.2
Euro B 78 0.9 0.3 42.1 19.3
GBP HE - = 10.2 0.1
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2012: 5%)
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2012: 5%)
sensitivity rate represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2012:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. The analysis has excluded USD
denominated monetary items as HKD, the functional currency of the
group entity holding these monetary items, is pegged to USD. The
directors consider that the currency risk in this regard is minimal. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax loss for the year
where functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% weakening of functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

28.

€@MIT R )
EEREEEERBER (&)

i E R ()

EXE b (&)

BRE DT
Tﬁiﬁuﬁ%zk%@%%ﬁ%;%@aﬁzw
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ZEHREE 5% (T ——4F: 5%)9@@1@&7&%
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FERS% (ZT——F 5% ) WINEL B R
EMBnER- :Z P A BIEETEEZEEE
B - REREALSEEHEAZEEERE Y
BEERB T EETTHS EERAHE L EHEY
EREBRBHMTRE N EBRTMINEES
HAEBINEABSREHZFELEGRTEEE
g me S EHEEEEE 2SS E B
MR ES% e HRMEEBERBERERZ
ME mNEBREREH-

Effect on post-tax
result for the year

HRBAXEZHE
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEBEET
Renminbi AR 23 0.7
Euro Bz 1.7 0.8
GBP ] 0.4 =
For the outstanding foreign exchange contracts, if the market bid ?JE?KEH@I\E%%’JF@%"1ﬁ$iﬂ%t’ﬁ%f§%ﬁ%ﬁ

forward foreign exchange rate of USD against the relevant currencies
had been 5% higher/lower and other factors remain constant, post-tax
loss for the year would decrease/increase by HK$0.5 million (2012: post-
tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by HK$0.7 million).

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose
and is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

BEE R EEEEAS, HES%TRRE
fﬁl%?“ BI| 25 4F FE B B 46 B B 4R B
BEOSHBIT (22— —F FER m«a;ziﬁa,rx
L/ BMEECTERL) °

EREERR/USMRAMELERE ARNFRZ
N R N S RS i = A R S PN
FrzE¥RRTERRE-
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28.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed primarily to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings
(see notes 20 and 24 for details of these bank balances, bank overdrafts
and bank borrowings). The Group currently does not have policy on
hedging of interest rate risks. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposures and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the
Group's Hong Kong borrowings at variable rates.

The management considers that the fair value interest rate risk on the
obligation under finance lease is insignificant.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for bank loans at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming bank loans at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2012: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year ended March 31, 2013 would increase/decrease by
HK$0.2 million (2012: post-tax loss would increase/decrease by HK$0.8
million). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

For bank deposits, no sensitivity analysis is performed as the range
of possible change in interest rates for bank deposits is considered as
insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R A
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure of
counterparties to perform their obligations in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

28.

£FT A @)
BEEREEBEZRBE (&)

FERR

MR-ZTF—=F=ZA=+—H0 AKEUXZHTF
*éﬁ?ft%‘iﬁi%uEﬁé@%ﬁﬂﬁé@ﬁﬁf&ﬁﬁﬁ&A
AEBERZBRZEREERR B4 HIK
5Ri€ﬁﬁﬁ§2%ﬁ?‘2ﬁl§ﬁ1ﬁ P%/JIE‘“{*EJ—LIZ
AEEZEREDHEER—ENMMEEEEEER
B EEHR LA&,H\ﬁEﬁt% T2 A RE (R B L 1R
(o] 780 H (5 TR SRR R 46 B o Uh S R B E # iR
HEBERWERR Z MBS ERE AR W
B ERERCHIBEBR - FRUMS  ARA
EEAREAEEZEERRE KRR -

AEERKERYESESET 2 EERK 54
R B “WifﬂﬁiﬁmEZyﬂx%ﬂi&
BEo

RITEMEFR T E 2 EERBRESAHRE
ﬁ?klﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzmmﬁ,\ﬁr%&ZﬁEﬁ @

REBE S E M

REBRBDESRRE  E2ER EKE@E
ERNERREAZRENERRESIAAKFE
REASELS %%FﬁmZéi&ﬁEﬁ%mg
K HE - BEREBEEERITEEZERRBR R
BRERERRL -

TRFAVZBRABZHERGT ARESRHAR
ZBTEH ‘J,HHEI MIEPTESRAREN S &
RIORBRASEAEEXFRAMGFEZSR
BEZARMRRENEFRE - WMRITEEIEFA
BERERGER ZERBERBRSBERRFEH
—H P EERITITEEENZATREME- ﬁﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ
FITESMBECIMAARERE ZERA
IREENREEAREHHEERE

IDT International Limited &gk BB B R 2 &
Annual Report ()13

119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR AR MR

For the year ended March 31, 2013 BEZE T —=F=A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

28.

EBT A )
BEEEEEEERBER (#)

REBESEE (F)
REEE R FERBR T

Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months 1to5 undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1year years cash flows 3.31.2013
RZB-=f
mE¥H EZXS =@AE ABH =ZA=+-H
ERF= ZEAR —F —Z1% RERELHE REE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BYEEER BY¥EEx BY¥EExT  BY%BEER  B%EER
2013 —E-=F
Non-derivative financial liabilities FT4-¢BEE
Trade and other payables B 158 B R % L At B A R - 126.3 - - 126.3 126.3
Bank loans - variable rate BAER—FEF = 3.03 2613 - - 2613 2613
Obligations under finance leases BBENES 3.80 0.2 04 0.1 0.7 0.6
Bank overdraft RITEX 2.23 0.6 - - 0.6 0.6
388.4 0.4 0.1 388.9 388.8
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months Tto5  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years cash flows 3.31.2012
RZB——F
MEFH EZska, Az AEEH =A=1+—H
ERH= =EARA ke —2hE HERELE FREE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
B¥RET A%EEr A%EEn  B¥EEr  B¥EER
2012 —E-CF
Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 & REE
Trade and other payables JE 1 BR AR R L 1 3008 = 142.1 33 = 145.4 145.4
Bank loans - variable rate POER—FEBHE 2.46 102.0 - 9.8 196.8 192.0
Obligations under finance leases BENES 3.60 0.1 0.4 0.7 1.2 1.1
2442 3.7 95.5 3434 3385
1 20 IDT International Limited & & B AR A F
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €@t T B (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEERERE B BERBER (4)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) wEBESERE (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) BB R FIEE fr K ()
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the RUAEREB ST EREERERT 2RT
“on demand or within 3 months” time band in the above maturity BERDBEEREERISEARN] KR -R=F
analysis. As at March 31, 2013, the aggregate amount of the bank —=F=RA=1+—RH BTERZERFER
loans amounted to HK$261.9 million (2012: HK$102.0 million). Taking B2 9B B L (ZE—ZF : F%102088
into account the Group's financial position, the directors do not believe TT)  ERBAREE 2 MR EEMTIEER
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights T RATREA TR AR RE R A E SR BN S TR - &
to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that the bank EMEERTEREREEBRZZE=(=ZF
loans will be repaid within one to three (2012: one to four) years after — & —EM)FRER HERERELORT
the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates RzstElE B - B REAE RRESFEX
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal B E2666A BT (ZF— % %1057
and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$266.6 million (2012: B&IT)°
HK$105.7 million).
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 1t03 3 months 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1year years  cash flows amount
METLS -BEZE =fRZE KR
ERAE  OR-BA =fiA - -Z1f RERELE REE
% HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M
B¥EEL B¥EEn EWEER A%EEx  A¥EER  BMEER
2013 —E-=§
Bank loans BITER 3.03 98.5 403 1033 244 2665 2619
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Tt03 3 months Tto5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows amount
MEFH —fEAZ =fiR% REF
ERFE  SR-{ERA =f8A - —FRF BENELE REE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AGRET B%EEn  B%BEx  ABEEx  A%AEn  E%EER
2012 -g--%&
Bank loans RITEH 1.86 22.5 33.2 105 39.5 105.7 102.0
IDT International Limited &gk BB B R 2 & 1 2 1
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using
discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable forward rates
for the remaining duration of the instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximates to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

122

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

IDT International Limited & BIFRE R R &
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. ®WMIA @
Fair value (continued) AREE (&)
3.31.2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& EZR E=R #E
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEHERL BY¥EER BYFExT BEBER
Financial assets SRMEE
Forward contract assets RHEIEHEE - 0.3 - 0.3
3.31.2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— FR E= 1REE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEETT Ake&ERx A¥agEr BEEER
Financial assets ERMEE
Forward contract assets RHAGHNEE = 0.2 = 0.2
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in current year. REFWRBEE - REAE_RHENERS -
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 29. KREFERSH

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Group acquired property,
plant and equipment of HK$1.0M (2013: nil) through finance lease
arrangement.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group disposed product
development costs of HK$10.4 million (2012: nil) to certain customers
at consideration of HK$10.4 million and the consideration was not yet
settled and included in other receivables as at March 31, 2013.

R-E——F=A=1+—HLEFE L~£EER
PHBHNO R EBABEI BB L (ZE—=F:
)2 R REE-

RNIZE—=ZF=ZA=1+—HLEFE AEHAHE
BEI04ABETL (2 ——F : T)WERMEMK
KFETEF REREKIVIABTL-N_F
—=ZF=ZA=1t—B ZEFEDAINREE
EEE M YRR -
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make
the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

REHEARE

RIBEMEE R ARERETTHMEZ LR

BB AR R KRR RAEEDT

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BREHET AEEET

Office equipment and motor vehicles MAERERARE
Within one year —F2ZN 0.3 0.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive “ERFN(PREEEMSE) 0.2 0.3
0.5 0.9
Rented premises HEWE
Within one year —F2A 21.2 236
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ZEhERN(BREEEMSE) 29.5 26.1
After five years hFE® 1.1 2.0
51.8 51.7

Operating leases relate to office equipment, motor vehicles and rented
premises with lease terms of between 2 to 7 years (2012: 2 to 8 years).
The Group does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the
expiry of the lease period.

Certain retail outlets include payment obligations with rentals varied
with gross revenue. The additional rental payable (contingent rents)
is determined generally by applying pre-determined percentages to
future expected sales less the basic rentals of the respective leases. The
contingent rents were excluded from the above amounts.

1 24 IDT International Limited & & B AR A F
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. ERKIE
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BB EEBIT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of HEEBEEYE KERREZEARRL
property, plant and equipment
— contracted for but not provided in the —BETHEERRGRE I
consolidated financial statements WMRIEL B 0.3 4.4

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution retirement schemes
for all qualifying employees, including directors. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where
there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. All qualifying
employees are required to participate in the MPF Scheme. Mandatory
benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

32.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management during the year was as follows:

33.

BEALRS
IEEEAEMS
REEZFEEBEABMEMT
2013 2012
HKS$'M HK$'M

AEEET BEEET

Short-term benefits EHREF 11.3 11.4
Post-employment benefits BEE 213 A 0.3 0.3
11.6 11.7

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

At March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company'’s principal subsidiaries, are
all indirectly wholly owned by the Company except Huger Electronics
GmbH which is 99.83% indirectly owned by the Company. Details of
the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at March 31, 2013 and 2012 are

34.

TEEEABZHMEemFMEESRENALZ
R I e T 55 % B 7K BEE o

FEHMBR

3

RIE—=FR_T——F=A=+—HAKA

ASTEMBA

AHAARRHEEZERE

BxHuger Electronics GmbHE AR R #E A
99.83% R —ZT—=FR_F—Z_F=A

as follows: =E+—BZFBET:
2013 2012
—E-=§ —E-CF
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment  registered capital ~ establishment  registered capital Principal activities
BRT BT
ERERL LERGEE/ HRAL/ EERGEE
WEARERE R::E HAMER  HUBE aER  ETEXR
Manufacturing business
HEXH
IDT Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore 935,122,525  Singapore $$35,122,525 Investment holding
Hmsg EpIE A i 1 g REZR
35,122,525 35,122,525
Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (Note) ~ PRC US$1,700,980  PRC US$1,700,980 Manufacture and sales of consumer
electronic products
RHEF (R ERAR (FHE) P 1700980%% HE 1700,980%X  HERHEETHEER
Huger Electronics GmbH Germany DM3,500,000  Germany DM3,500,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
e 3,500,0005% 1= 35000005 — EERAHEFHEER
1 2 6 IDT International Limited & & B AR A E
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2013 Eﬁz
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BB ERR M

E-T-=FZA=+—HILEFE

. TENRBLR @

2013 2012
—E-ZF —E--f%
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment  registered capital ~ establishment  registered capital Principal activities
BRT BRI
EEKL/ LERAEE/ EMAL/ EERHEE
WEAREH R SMEER  RUBH &R TEER
IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic products
BRMHAARAT X BT BA AT BHETHEER
ERET ORI BRAA (Note)* PRC HK$35,000,000 - - Manufacture of consumer electronic
products and plastic parts and
provision of surface mount
technology assembly services
EREF (R BRAR (M) = HE 78%35,000,000T - - RERTHEERRZEBEHHM
RIREREE AR RS
IDT Electronic Products Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic products
BRETI£BRARA B B¥r  BA AT BHETEBEM
Integrated Display Technology PRC RMB11,000,000  PRC RMB11,000,000 Manufacture and sales of
Telecommunications (Shenzhen) telecommunication products
Co., Ltd. (Note)*
BREA (R ARAR (fiz)* E AE#11,000000 HE ARK11,000000  HEREEEAER
IDT Communication Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of telecommunication products
EBRBARBERAA ] B¥r  BA BT BHENES
Sales and distribution business
HERIHEY
Oregon Scientific Australia Pty Limited Australia A$6,010,000  Australia A$6,010,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BN 6,010,000%5 R 60100008  KERSHBEFHEBEM
Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda Brazil BRL11,332,974  Brazil BRL11,332,974 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BA M33297485@ ER 11,332,9745 58 EERAHETHEER

IDT International Limited & kBB AR A 7]
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34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

128

. TERBLR @

2013 2012
—E-ZF —E-C&
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment  registered capital ~ establishment  registered capital Principal activities
B&f BE{T
ERERL/ EERGEE/ SRRL/ LERAEE
WEARERE B2 SMEER  RUBH ZMEEx  TEER
Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH Germany DM2,550,000  Germany DM2,550,000 Marketing and distribution
consumer electronic products
e 2,550,0005% 12H 255000057  EERDHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific France S.AR.L. France EUR3,500,000  France EUR3,500,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
EE 350000088 iE 350000080  HERNHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BATERERAA ] B BA B¥r  EERAHETHEED
Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000  Hong Kong HK$500,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BATEERRAA ] 5000008 BB A®500000 EERABEFHEER
Oregon Scientific Ibérica, S.A.U. Spain EUR300,000  Spain EUR300,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BRF 3000008 FAHT 30000081 ~ EERSOHEFHEEM
Oregon Scientific [talia S.p.A. Italy EUR2,156,000  Italy EUR2,156,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
BEAA 2,156,008 K7 21560008 ~ RERSHETHEBEM
Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom GBP2,400,002  United Kingdom GBP2,400,002 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
®E 2,400,002%8  ZE 2,400,002 £ RERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific, Inc. United States of US$2,060,000  United States of US$2,060,000 Marketing and distribution of
America America consumer electronic products
26 2,060000%7% XE 2,060,000% 7 RERDHETHEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

l‘/-ﬁ

For the year ended March 31, 2013 Eﬁz

BB ERR M T

ET-ZFZA=+—HILEFE

. TERBLR @

2013 2012
“E-=%§ —E--f%
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment  registered capital ~ establishment  registered capital Principal activities
BRT BRI
RalaYe LERAEE/ HEMAL/ EERGEE
WELAREE R SMES  RUBH ZMEEx  TEER
Oregon Scientific SmartLiving Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of
(formerly known as IDT Electronic consumer electronic products
Products (HK) Limited)
BATEREEERAF ] BT BA B¥r  EERABETHEED
(FIBBRETIR (BE)ARAR)
Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai) PRC US$2,440,000  PRC US$2,440,000 Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited (Note) consumer electronic products
BAEZES (L§)BRAR (M) HE 2,440,000 24400005 EERAHEFHEED
Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) PRC US$900,000  PRC 1S$900,000 Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited (Note) consumer electronic products
BAEEE (ER)BRAR () HE 900,000%7%  HH 900000kt  EERHSHEFHEER
Oregon Scientific (Guangzhou) Trading Co., Ltd. PRC HK$2,300,000 PRC HK$2,300,000 Marketing and distribution of
(Note) consumer electronic products
ENTERBETESERAA (M) HE #%2,300000%  F #%2300000r  RERAHEFHEER
IDT (Japan) Limited Japan JPY30,000,000  Japan JPY30,000,000 Trading of consumer electronic products
=p:y 30,000,0008 B 30,000,000H BEETHEBER
Nature Bird Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of
(formerly known as Raymax Time wellness and beauty products
Company Limited)
RABERRF (FTTERaymax Time BB B BA B¥T  EERABREREEREM
Company Limited )

IDT International Limited & kBB AR A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

v/'ﬁ 7f ﬁ%#&%z |§ﬁ

For the year ended March 31, 2013 HE T —=F=A=+—HILFE

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. TEMBERT @)
2013 2012
—E-ZF —E-C&
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment  registered capital ~ establishment  registered capital Principal activities
[BX$h 2RT
EmEL/ LEROEE/ HRRY/ EERGEE
WEARERE KL gMER  HUBE afER TEEH
Corporate
NEEH
Integrated Display Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000  Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 Provision of group administrative
services
ERRRERAR 5 #%6,000,000c FE 7#6,000,0007C RESBTHRS
IDT Electronic Technology (Shenzhen) PRC USD6,300,000  PRC USD6,300,000 Provision of group research and
Company Limited (Note) development services
ERETRE (RN BBRAA (M) HE 6,300,000%% 7 6,300,000 7T RESERERRERS
Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. Misk: MARBIKSZ 2 ZINEMRE-
# These subsidiaries were deregistered during the year ended March 31, 2013. & RZE—=F=A=+—HFE ZEHEAA
AR EH R o
e These subsidiaries were established during the year ended March 31, 2013. & RZE—=F=A=+—HFE ZEHEAA
DAV
All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective place L s X EMBAREEBERLEMAKL, MR
of incorporation/establishment. B AT o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the iﬁ VIHEFEGR R AEEXELNEEER
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the FEZMBRR -EETRAFMAINAE M
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the WJ% Al BRI BRITEK -

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end K& HEES B Yﬁifg&ﬂﬁ RIA - K8
of the reporting period, or at any time during the year. R EEAT 4 R R 2 (R
1 30 IDT International Limited & BB R A &
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Financial Information of the Company

ZANNGI L) 7J7T51 JH

As at March 31,2013 A= —=F=A=1+—H

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting period RBEHRHEEER A RAINFBHER B4 -
includes:

2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BREHET AEEET

ASSETS BE
Interests in subsidiaries (note 1) RSB AR &R (M) 278.2 476.9
Other receivables H b & W IE 0.3 0.1
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIAS 0.1 0.1
278.6 477 1
LIABILITIES =N
Other payables M FE T 5RIE 3.1 3.3
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A< BT /B8 2 R) 5k 718 1.1 200.8
4.2 204.1
NET ASSETS BEEFE 274.4 273.0
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR #FHE
Share capital [N 250.2 250.2
Reserves (note 2) i (MTsE2) 24.2 22.8
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 274.4 273.0
Note: B EE
1. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 1. KB Q R =
2013 2012
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BEEET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD - A AE 204.8 204.8
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEUS KB A Bl ROE (B aE) 73.4 272.1
278.2 476.9
Note: The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and with no fixed repayment st : SEFSEEWEER TS REETERE-
terms.
IDT International Limited & EIBR B R A A 1 3 1
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Financial Information of the Company

AR A E R

As at March 31, 2013 R=E—=F=A=+—H

2. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 2. AR E
Share
Share Other options Revenue
premium reserve reserves reserve Total
R EE Hibf#E R Wi mE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

RBRBET BREET BRBET BREET BRRET

At April 1, 2011 RZZ——4%MA—H 151.6 126.3 2.5 (258.7) 21.7
Loss and total comprehensive expenses AEEEERZERXERE

for the year - - - (1.0) (1.0)
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR 2 S A9 9 A

share based payments MR AP REXE 2 5K - - 2.1 - 2.1
Lapse of share options L P - - (0.4) 0.4 =
At March 31, 2012 RZZE—=—f=RA=1+—H° 151.6 126.3 4.2 (259.3) 22.8
Loss and total comprehensive expenses AEEEEREZERXERE

for the year - - - (1.0) (1.0)
Recognition of equity-settled TR LA 2 S A9 9 A

share based payments R AD REZE 2 (5% - - 2.4 - 2.4
Lapse of share options FE AR R 3 - - (0.6) 0.6 -
At March 31, 2013 R-ZZE—=5=A=+—H 151.6 126.3 6.0 (259.7) 242

1 3 2 IDT International Limited & &R AR A F
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Hong Kong Headquarters
IDT International Limited
Integrated Display Technology Limited
Block C, 9/F., Kaiser Estate,
41 Man Yue Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852 2764 7873

Fax: 852 2765 6620

Email: idthk@idthk.com
Website: www.idthk.com

PRC manufacturing facilities
IDT R&D Centre

Chentian Industrial Estate,
Xixiang, Bao An,

Shenzhen, PRC

Tel: 86 755 2970 1188

Fax: 86 755 2970 9025

EUROPE

Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A.
Centro Direzionale Colleoni, Palazzo
Taurus 2, Viale Colleoni, 3

20864 Agrate Brianza (MB), Italy
Tel: 39 039 656 1814

Fax: 39 039 643 3111

Email: info@oregonscientific.it
Website: www.oregonscientific.it

Oregon Scientific Ibérica S.A.
C\ Zurbano, 45, First Floor,
28010 Madrid, Spain

Tel: 34 91 650 3795

Email: sales@oregonscientific.es
Website: www.oregonscientific.es

Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited
Suites 3/5, Old Bank House

39 High Street, High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire, HP11 2AG

UK

Tel: 44 1494 956 388

Fax: 44 1494 417 037

Email: enquiries@oregonuk.com
Website: www.oregonscientific.co.uk

Oregon Scientific France S.A.R.L.
3 Rue Jesse Owens,

93210 La Plaine,

Saint Denis, France

Tel: 33 1 5593 2688

Fax: 33 1 5593 2699

Email: info@oregonscientific.fr
Website: www.oregonscientific.fr

Offices and Facilities

Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH
SiemensstrafBe 3,

63263 Neu-Isenburg,

Germany

Tel: 49 6102 7985 388

Fax: 49 6102 7985 389

Email: info@oregonscientific.de

Website: www.oregonscientific.de

NORTH AMERICA

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Portland Office

19861 SW 95th Avenue,
Tualatin, Oregon 97062, USA
Tel: 1 503 783 5123

Fax: 1 503 691 6208

Email: info@oscientific.com
Website: us.oregonscientific.com

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Massachusetts Office

142-F North Road, Suite 175, Sudbury
MA 01776, USA

Tel: 1 508 475 0562

Fax: 1 978 254 5711

Email: info@oscientific.com

Website: us.oregonscientific.com

LATIN AMERICA

Oregon Scientific Brasil Limitada
Av. Ibirapuera, 2.907-

sl. 1112,

Bourbon Convention - Ed.
Commercial State - Moema,

S&o Paulo-SP CEP 04029-200,
Brazil

Tel: 55 11 5091 6720

Fax: 55 11 5511 6711

Email: osb@oregonscientific.com.br
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.br

ASIA PACIFIC

Oregon Scientific Global Distribution
Limited

Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited
Block C, 9/F, Kaiser Estate,

41 Man Yue Street,

Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852 2303 1889

Fax: 852 2765 7435

Email: info@oregonscientific.com
Website: www.oregonscientific.com

MSE KRB

Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai)
Limited

(Officially known as EiFger & 5 ( L&)
BRAR)

18F, Harbour Ring Huangpu Centre,

No. 98 Liu He Road,

Shanghai 200001, PRC

Tel: 86 21 6350 7072

Fax: 86 21 6350 7074

Email: os-shanghai@oregonscientific.com.cn
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) Co., Ltd
(Officially known as BXFEZE & 5 (b 7R)
BRATA)

Room 1902 Building 10, Jianwai SOHO,
39 East 3rd-Ring Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing 100022, PRC

Tel: 86 10 5869 9065

Fax: 86 10 5869 9095

Email: os-beijing@oregonscientific.com.cn
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific (Guangzhou)
Trading Co., Ltd.

(Officially known as /& M 77 & g[8 73 00
Z5HR A

Unit C, 21F FengXing Plaza,

No. 240 Tianhe Road, Guangzhou

Tel: 86 20 8550 9437

Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific Australia Pty Limited
The Coach House,

85 George Street,

Parramatta, NSW 2150

Australia

Tel: 61 2 8297 4714

Fax: 61 2 9687 0228

Email: info@oregonscientific.com.au
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.au

Oregon Scientific (Japan) Limited
IDT (Japan) Limited

8/F., Yuemu Building, 1-14-5,
Higashi-Ueno,

Taito-ku, Tokyo 110-0015, Japan
Tel: 81 3 3837 3791

Fax: 81 3 3837 3980

Email: general@idtj.co.jp

Website: www.oregonscientific.com
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(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBEREAMKRLIZBERAA)
(Stock code BRIAMER : 167)
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